
 

For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  

711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

AGENDA 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Regular Meeting 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

July 6
th

 2011 

2:00 p.m. 
 

   1-CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 

   2-REPORTS 

Karen Kilby, VDOT 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 

   3-PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 (5 minutes each) 

 

  4-CONSENT AGENDA 
TAB S  Minutes of June 15

th
, 2011 – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

TAB T  County Attorney Contract Renewal – Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

TAB U  Resolution Updating the Fluvanna County Pay and Classification Plan – Barbara Wall-Magee, Human  

   Resources Manager 

 

    5-ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

TAB V  Renee Hoover, Finance Director 

 

   6-PUBLIC HEARING  

TAB W  Ordinance that gives the Board of Supervisors the Authority to Pay a Monetary Bonus to County Officers  

 and Employees – Barbara Wall-Magee, Human Resources Manager 

TAB XYZ Proposed ordinance amendment to Chapter 2, Article 2 of the Fluvanna County Code in Chapter 2,  

Article 2, Sections 2-2-3, 2-2-4, and 2-2-6 concerning reapportionment of election districts;  

creation of certain new districts; and the establishment of certain new precincts – Darren Coffey, 

Planning Director 

    

   7-PRESENTATIONS (normally not to exceed 10-minute limitation) 

  None 

 

   8-ACTION MATTERS 

TAB A  Reassessment of Real Property – Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 

  9-OLD BUSINESS 

 

10-NEW BUSINESS 

 

11-PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (5 minutes each) 

 

 12-CLOSED MEETING 

  None Scheduled 

 

13- RETREAT  

   

  FIVE-YEAR FORECAST REVIEW 

Steve Jacobs, Managing Director of the Richmond office and Director of Consulting Services for  

 Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates 

 



 

For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  

711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

5:30 – 6:30PM 
 

DINNER BREAK 

 

6:30PM 
 

14- RECONVENE  

TAB B  REVIEW OF ESTABLISHED VISION & GOALS 

                                                Facilitator – Steve Williams, TJPDC Executive Director  

 

                            METHODOLOGY AND REVIEW OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM    

                                Facilitator – Steve Williams, TJPDC Executive Director 

 

15-ADJOURN  

 

 

 

 

 

********** 
Pledge of Allegiance 

I pledge allegiance to the flag  

of the United States of America  

and to the Republic for which it stands,  

one nation, under God, indivisible, 

 with liberty and justice for all. 

********** 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

PUBLIC HEARING RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

1) PURPOSE 

The purpose of a public hearing is to receive testimony from the public on certain resolutions, ordinances or 

amendments prior to taking action.  A hearing is not a dialogue or debate.  Its express purpose is to receive 

additional facts, comments and opinion on  subject items. 

2) SPEAKERS 

 Speakers should approach the lectern so they may be visible and audible to the Board. 

 Each speaker should clearly state his/her name and address. 

 All comments should be directed to the Board. 

 All questions should be directed to the Chairman.  Members of the Board are not expected to respond to 

questions, and response to questions shall be made at the Chairman's discretion.  Speakers are encouraged to 

contact staff regarding unresolved concerns or to receive additional information. 

 Speakers with questions are encouraged to call County staff prior to the public hearing. 

 Speakers should be brief and avoid repetition of previously presented comments. 

        3) ACTION 

At the conclusion of the public hearing on each item, the Chairman will close the public hearing.  The Board will 

proceed with its deliberation and will act on or formally postpone action on such item prior to proceeding to other 

agenda items.  Further public comment after the public hearing has been closed generally will not be permitted. 

 

 

********** 

ORDER 

 

1. It shall be the duty of the Chairman to maintain order and decorum at meetings.  The Chairman shall speak to points of 

order in preference to all other members. 

 



 

For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  

711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

2. In maintaining decorum and propriety of conduct, the Chairman shall not be challenged and no debate shall be allowed 

until after the Chairman declares that order has been restored.  In the event the Board wishes to debate the matter of the 

disorder or the bringing of order; the regular business may be suspended by vote of the Board to discuss the matter. 

 

3. No member or citizen shall be allowed to use abusive language, excessive noise, or in any way incite persons to use 

such tactics.  The Chairman and/or the County Administrator shall be the judge of such breaches, however, the Board 

may vote to overrule both. 

 

When a person engages in such breaches, the Chairman shall order the person’s removal from the building, or may 

order the person to stand silent, or may, if necessary, order the person removed from the County property 



 

 

MOTION: I move the regular meeting minutes of the Fluvanna County Board of 

Supervisors for Wednesday, June 15
th

, 2011 be adopted. 
 

 

AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  July 6
th

, 2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: Adoption of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors regular meeting 

minutes. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

TIMING: Routine 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

DISCUSSION:  None 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None 

 

Staff:  Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

Copy:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

Comments: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, June 15
th

, 2011 

Page 1 

 

 

  FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

June 15th, 2011 

7:00 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice-Chairman  

    Joe Chesser 

    Donald W. Weaver 

Mozell H. Booker 

Chris S. Fairchild  

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

    Fred Payne, County Attorney 

    John Robins, Public Works Director 

Darren K. Coffey, Director of Planning 

    Mary L. Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 
Chairman Gooch called the meeting of June 15th, 2011, to order at 7:00 p.m., in the Circuit 

Courtroom of the New Courts Building in Palmyra, Virginia; and the Pledge of Allegiance was 

recited, after which, Chairman Gooch called for a moment of silence. 

 

REPORTS 

Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, reported on the following topics: 

 State Tournament Babe Ruth League – will be held July 7th-10th, 2011,  at Carysbrook. 

 Animal Control – Mr. Garland Nuckols introduced Dustin Elliott, the new Animal Control 

Officer. 

 Department of Emergency Management – received grant in the amount of $21, 040, for the 

purchase and maintenance of license plate readers. 

 Micro Enterprise Loans – met with Creative Community Fund and RDC Community Council 

to have Fluvanna certified as a locality for Micro Enterprise Loans.  

 Aqua Virginia – received a response letter from Aqua Virginia. 

 JABA – received letter stating the effects of the gas prices, and a need for additional funding. 

 iPad Cost Analysis -  Planning Commission worked up a cost analysis for iPads. 

 BOS Retreat – will be immediately following the July 6th, 2011,  meeting.   

 Reassessment of Real Property – will present request to advertise for reassessment RFP at the 

July 6th, 2011, meeting. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the first round of public comments. 

 Jerry Passer, Rivanna District – addressed the Board regarding residents being heard by the 

Board.  

 Adrian Miller, Rivanna District – addressed the Board regarding the economy, policies, 

educational and economic development concerns. 

 Elizabeth Franklin, Kents Store – addressed the Board regarding the agendas being posted on 

the website. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, June 15
th

, 2011 

Page 2 

 

 

 Dave Miller, Palmyra District – thanked the Board for their service and addressed the Board 

in regards to the high school and the tax rate.   

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the first round of public comments. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items were approved under the consent agenda: 

 MOTION: 

Mr. Weaver moved to approve the consent agenda with corrections to minutes, which 

consisted of: 

 Minutes of June 1st, 2011. 

 Budget Transfer to County Attorney Services. 

 Authorization of the request for bid of Fork Union Firehouse. 

Mr. Fairchild seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 

Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None. 

 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

None 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Redistricting to Seven Districts – To receive comments on the proposed ordinance amendment to 

Chapter 2, Article 2 of the Fluvanna County Code in Chapter 2, Article 2, Sections 2-2-3, 2-2-4, 

and 2-2-6 concerning reapportionment of election districts; creation of certain new districts; and 

the establishment of certain new precincts. 

Mr. Darren Coffey, Director of Planning, reviewed with the Board the seven district map that 

was advertised for public hearing.   

Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing.  

 Marvin Moss, Columbia District – addressed the Board in support of a five district 

scenario. 

 Jerry Passer, Rivanna District – complemented the Board and staff for the well done 

studies on the matter and addressed the Board in support of a seven district scenario. 

 Elizabeth Franklin, Kents Store – spoke on behalf of the Fluvanna Taxpayers Association 

in support of a six or seven district scenario. 

 Dick Kopsell, Palmyra District - addressed the Board in support of a five district 

scenario. 

 Len Gardner, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in support of a five district scenario. 

 Tom Payne, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in support of a five district scenario. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing.  

Discussion – Mr. Joe Chesser shared with the Board his reasons for reconsidering a five district 

scenario and would like to see two polling places in the districts to cut down the distance.  Mr. 

Fairchild supports a seven district scenario.  Ms. Booker stated that a seven district scenario is 

better for her, but a five district is better for the County.   
MOTION: 

Mr. Weaver  moved that the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors approve the 

attached redistricting ordinance, reapportioning its electoral districts consistent 

with its decennial redistricting mandate.  Further, move to forward these proposed 

changes to the County Attorney for prompt submission to the Department of 

Justice.   Mr. Fairchild seconded.  The motion failed, with a vote of 3-3.  AYES:  



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, June 15
th

, 2011 

Page 3 

 

 

Weaver, Fairchild and Kenney.   NAYS:  Gooch, Chesser and Booker.  ABSENT:  

None.    

 

Mr. Payne clarified for the Board how many polling places are allowed in each district. 

After some further discussion the following motion was made: 

Mrs. Booker moved that the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors advertise the 

five district scenario 1C.   Mr. Chesser seconded.  Mr. Kenney requested Mr. 

Coffey to review the five district scenarios that were looked at previously.  

The motion carried, with a vote of 4-2.  AYES:  Gooch, Chesser, Booker and 

Kenney.   NAYS:  Weaver and Fairchild.  ABSENT:  None.    

 

PRESENTATIONS: 

None 

 

ACTION MATTERS 

Boards/Commissions Committee – Transportations Safety Commission – Rivanna District  

Mr. Fairchild and Mr. Chesser requested this appointment be deferred to the July 20
th

, 

2011meeting. 

 

Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – Student Position 

 MOTION: 

Mr. Chesser moved to reappoint Terry Crickenberger, to the Parks and Recreation 

Advisory Board, Student position, with a term to begin July 1
st
, 2011, and to 

terminate on June 30
th

, 2012. Mrs. Booker seconded. The motion carried, with a 

vote of 6-0. AYES: Gooch, Weaver, Chesser, Booker, Fairchild and Kenney.  

NAYS: None. ABSENT: None. 

 

Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – At Large Positions 

 MOTION: 

Mr. Weaver moved to reappoint Mr. Philip Carter and Mr. Scott Marshall, to the 

Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, At Large positions, with a term to begin 

July 1
st
, 2011, and to terminate on June 30

th
, 2012. Mrs. Booker seconded. The 

motion carried, with a vote of 6-0. AYES: Gooch, Weaver, Chesser, Booker, 

Fairchild and Kenney.  NAYS: None. ABSENT: None. 

 

Jefferson Area Board for Aging (JABA) Advisory Council  

 MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved to reappoint Ms. Elva F. Key, to the Jefferson Area Board for 

Aging (JABA) Advisory Council, with a term to begin July 1
st
, 2011, and to 

terminate on June 30
th

, 2013.  Mr. Kenney seconded. The motion carried, with a 

vote of 6-0. AYES: Gooch, Weaver, Chesser, Booker, Fairchild and Kenney.  

NAYS: None. ABSENT: None. 

 

Jefferson Area Board for Aging (JABA) Board of Directors  

 MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved to reappoint Mr. William Hughes, to the Jefferson Area 

Board for Aging (JABA) Board of Directors, with a term to begin July 1
st
, 2011, 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, June 15
th

, 2011 

Page 4 

 

 

and to terminate on June 30
th

, 2013.  Mr. Kenney seconded. The motion carried, 

with a vote of 6-0. AYES: Gooch, Weaver, Chesser, Booker, Fairchild and 

Kenney.  NAYS: None. ABSENT: None. 

 

Library Board of Trustees, Fork Union District  

 MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved to reappoint Ms. Nancy Aasen, to the Library Board of 

Trustees, with a term to begin July 1
st
, 2011, and to terminate on June 30

th
, 2015.  

Mr. Weaver seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 6-0. AYES: Gooch, 

Weaver, Chesser, Booker, Fairchild and Kenney.  NAYS: None. ABSENT: None. 

 

Library Board of Trustees, Rivanna District 

Mr. Fairchild and Mr. Chesser requested this appointment be deferred to the July 20
th

, 

2011meeting. 

 

Social Services Board, Palmyra District  

 MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved to appoint Mr. Tom Payne, to the Social Services Board, 

Palmyra District, with a term to begin July 1
st
, 2011, and to terminate on June 

30
th

, 2015.  Mr. Chesser seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 6-0. AYES: 

Gooch, Weaver, Chesser, Booker, Fairchild and Kenney.  NAYS: None. 

ABSENT: None. 

 

Economic Development Authority (EDA), Palmyra District 

 MOTION: 

Mr. Chesser moved to appoint Mr. Everett M. Hannah, to the Economic 

Development Authority (EDA), Palmyra District, with a term to begin 

immediately and to terminate on May 31
st
, 2015.  Mrs. Booker seconded. The 

motion carried, with a vote of 6-0. AYES: Gooch, Weaver, Chesser, Booker, 

Fairchild and Kenney.  NAYS: None. ABSENT: None. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

Draft Agenda for the Board of Supervisors Retreat 

The Board reviewed the proposed agenda for the July 6
th

, 2011, retreat.    

 

NEW BUSINESS 
The following items were discussed under new business: 

 letter from Mr. Sam Edwards regarding capping debt services spending for the 

County.   

The Board directed the County Attorney to explore County debt limitations; supermajority for 

repeal of ordinances. 

 how tax collection is coming; 

 Kents Store Firehouse Dedication, June 11, 2011; 

 Active Aging Expo, June 14, 2011; 

 communication between Board members; 

 future work session with the Planning Commission. 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, June 15
th

, 2011 

Page 5 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #2 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the second round of public comments.   

 Tom Payne, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in regards to the purpose of public 

hearings. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the second segment of public 

comments. 

 

ADJOURN 

MOTION: 

At 9:11 p.m., Mr. Kenney moved to adjourn the meeting of Wednesday, June 15
th

, 

2011.  Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  

Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Booker, Weaver and Fairchild.   NAYS:  None.   

ABSENT: None     

 

 

 

        

John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, June 15
th

, 2011 

Page 6 

 

 

DRAFT 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT THE FLUVANNA COUNTY CODE IN 

CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2, SECTIONS 2-2-3, 2-2-4, AND 2-2-6 CONCERNING 

REAPPORTIONMENT OF ELECTION DISTRICTS; CREATION OF CERTAIN NEW 

DISTRICTS; AND THE ESTABLISHMENT OF CERTAIN NEW PRECINCTS  

  

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE FLUVANNA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, as follows: 

 

(1) That the County Code be, and it is hereby, amended and reenacted, in Chapter 2, Article 

2, Sections 2-2-3, 2-2-4, and 2-2-6, as follows:   

 

Article 2.  Election Districts. 

 

Sec. 2-2-1.   Created and established. 

   

Pursuant to authority contained in Title 24.2, Ch. 3, Article 2.1, Sections 24.2-304.1, ff., 

and Title 24.2, Ch. 3, Article 3, Sections 24.2-305, ff., of the Code of Virginia, the election 

districts and their respective polling places for the county are hereby created and established as 

set forth in this article.  (Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-1-81; Ord. 5-15-91; 

Ord. 5-16-01) 

 

Sec. 2-2-2.   Magisterial districts unaffected by article; representation to be by election  

district.  

 

 The magisterial districts of the county, with boundary lines and names thereof 

respectively as constituted and known on the day before the ordinance from which this article 

derives took effect, shall remain the same, but representation on the governing body shall be by 

election districts described in this article.  (Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-

1-81; Ord. 5-15-91; Ord. 5-16-01) 

 

Sec. 2-2-3. Districts enumerated; populations and polling places; precincts. 

 

(a) The election districts, with populations and polling places set forth, are as follows: 

 

Name  Population  Polling Place 

 

Palmyra  3467  3655  Palmyra Fire House 

Columbia  3255  3730  Kents Store Agricultural 

                 Recreation Center 

Fork Union 3204  3509  Fluvanna County Community Center 

Cunningham  3372  3852  Antioch Baptist Church 

South Rivanna 3656   Lake Monticello Fire & Rescue 

      Building  

North Rivanna 6749  3726  Lake Monticello Clubhouse 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, June 15
th

, 2011 

Page 7 

 

 

Zion  3563   Beaver Dam Baptist Church 

 

(b) Precincts shall be known by their respective polling places and shall be coterminous 

with the respective electoral districts., except that, for the Rivanna District, there shall 

be two precincts, as follows: 

 

(1) Lake Monticello Fire and Rescue Precinct shall be that portion of the Rivanna 

District southerly from a line running from the intersection of Jefferson Drive and 

South Bearwood Drive; thence along South Bearwood Drive in a northerly 

direction to the intersection of South Bearwood Drive and Kingswood Road; 

thence along Kingswood Road to its terminus and continuing in a direct line 

easterly to the center of Lake Monticello; thence along the center of Lake 

Monticello in an easterly direction to a direct line, the northerly extension of 

Chatham Lane; thence in a southerly direction along Chatham Lane to its 

intersection with Woodridge Road; thence along Woodridge Road in an easterly 

direction to its intersection with Jefferson Drive; thence in a westerly direction 

along Jefferson Drive to its intersection with Slice Road; thence along Slice Road 

in an easterly direction to the intersection with State Route 600 (South Boston 

Road); 

 

(2) Lake Monticello Clubhouse Precinct shall be that portion of the Rivanna District 

northerly from the line described in the preceding subsection.   

 

(c) In addition to the foregoing precincts, there is hereby established a central absentee 

voting precinct, which shall be in the Historic Courthouse, Palmyra, Virginia.  The 

central absentee voting precinct shall be used for all elections.   

 

(Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-1-81; Ord. 5-15-91; Ord. 5-16-01; 

Ord. 3-20-02; Ord. 11-15-06; Ord. 7-18-07; Ord. 2-18-09) 

 

Sec. 2-2-4. District boundaries: 

 The boundaries of the respective election districts are as set forth below: 

 Palmyra Election District – Number 1. 

 Beginning at the intersection of the Rivanna River and the Albemarle County border and 

following the Rivanna River in a southeasterly direction until its intersection with the northerly 

border of Census Block 2034 to the intersection of Route 600 (South Boston Road), following 

Route 600 (South Boston Road) in a southerly direction to its intersection with Route 53 

(Thomas Jefferson Parkway), following Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) in an easterly 

direction to its intersection with Route 15 (James Madison Highway), following Route 15 (James 

Madison Highway) in a northerly direction to its intersection with the Fluvanna-Louisa County 

line, then in a westerly direction following the Fluvanna-Louisa County line, then in a southerly 

direction following the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line to its intersection with the Rivanna 

River, the point of beginning. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, June 15
th

, 2011 

Page 8 

 

 

 Beginning at the intersection of Monish Drive and Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Highway) 

and following Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Highway) in a westerly direction to its intersection 

with the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line; thence in a northerly direction with the Fluvanna-

Albemarle County Line to the Rivanna River and following the Rivanna River in an easterly 

direction to its intersection with the Mechunk Creek; thence in a northerly direction with the 

Mechunk Creek to its intersection with Route 616 (Union Mills Road); thence in an easterly 

direction with Route 616 to its intersection with Route 15 (James Madison Highway) and 

following Route 15 (James Madison Highway) in a southerly direction to its intersection with 

Route 640 (Haden Martin Road); thence in a westerly direction with Route 640 (Haden Martin 

Road) to its intersection with the power line right-of-way; thence in a northwesterly direction 

with the power line right-of-way to its intersection with the Middle Fork of Cunningman Creek; 

thence in an easterly direction with Cunningham Creek to its intersection with Route 693 (Bell 

Farms Lane); thence in a northerly direction with Route 693 (Bell Farms Lane) to its 

intersection with Route 619 (Ruritan Lake Road); thence in an easterly direction with Route 619 

(Ruritan Lake Road) to its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Highway) and following 

Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Highway) in a westerly direction to its intersection with Route 600 

(South Boston Road); thence in a northerly direction with Route 600 (South Boston Road) to its 

intersection with Lake Monticello’s dam outlet stream; thence in a westerly direction along 

Jefferson Drive to Monish Drive and its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Highway), 

the point of beginning.     

 

Columbia Election District - Number 2. 

 Beginning at the intersection of Route 15 (James Madison Highway) and the Fluvanna-

Louisa County line; thence in an easterly direction with the Fluvanna-Louisa County line to its 

intersection with the Goochland County line; thence in a southerly direction with the Fluvanna-

Goochland County line to its intersection with the James River on the east side of the Town of 

Columbia; thence in a westerly direction with following the James River to its intersection with 

the Rivanna River and following the Rivanna River in a northwesterly direction to its 

intersection with Roundabout Creek; thence in a northerly direction with Roundabout Creek to 

its intersection with Route 609 (Hells Bend Road); thence in an easterly direction with Route 609 

(Hells Bend Road) to its intersection with Route 606 (Hells Bend Road); thence in a northerly 

direction with Route 606 (Hells Bend Road) to its intersection with Route 608 (Wilmington 

Road) and following Route 608 (Wilmington Road) in a northwesterly direction to its 

intersection with Route 601 (Courthouse Road); thence in a westerly direction with Route 601 

(Courthouse Road) to its intersection with Route 1007 (Stoneleigh Road) and following Route 

1007 (Stoneleigh Road) in a southwesterly direction to its intersection with Route 15 (James 

Madison Highway);  thence in a northerly direction with Route 15 (James Madison Highway) to 

its intersection with the Fluvanna-Louisa County line, the point of beginning. 

   

 

Fork Union Election District - Number 3. 

Beginning at the common corner of the counties of Fluvanna, Cumberland and 

Goochland east to the Town of Columbia; thence up the James River to its intersection with 

Rockfish Creek; thence up Rockfish Creek to its intersection with the southerly border of Census 

Block 2003; thence along the southerly border of Census Block 2003 in a westerly direction to 

its intersection with State Route 646 (Hardware Road); thence in a northerly direction along 

Route 646 (Hardware Road) to its intersection with State Route 6 (West River Road); thence in a 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, June 15
th

, 2011 

Page 9 

 

 

northeasterly direction along Route 6 (West River Road) to its intersection with the westerly 

boundary of Census Block 2002; thence with the westerly boundary of Census Block 2002 in a 

southerly direction to its intersection with State Route 697 (Cunningham Road); thence along 

Route 697 (Cunningham Road) in an easterly direction to its intersection with State Route 640 

(Cunningham Road); thence along Route 640 (Cunningham Road) in an easterly direction to its 

intersection with State Route 6 (West River Road); thence along Route 6 (West River Road) in 

an easterly direction to its intersection with State Route 640 (Haden Martin Road); thence in a 

northerly direction with State Route 640 (Haden Martin Road) to its intersection with U. S. 

Route 15 (James Madison Highway); thence in a northerly direction with U.S. Route 15 (James 

Madison Highway) to its intersection with the Rivanna River; thence in an easterly direction with 

the Rivanna River to its intersection with the James River; thence down the James River to point 

of beginning. 

 Beginning at the intersection of Route 15 (James Madison Highway) and Route 1007 

(Stoneleigh Road) and following Route 1007 (Stoneleigh Road) in an easterly and northeasterly 

direction to its intersection with Route 601 (Courthouse Road); thence in an easterly direction 

with Route 601 (Courthouse Road) to its intersection with Route 608 (Wilmington Road); thence 

in a southeasterly direction with Route 608 (Wilmington Road) to its intersection with Route 606 

(Hells Bend Road); thence in a southerly direction with Route 606 (Hells Bend Road) to its 

intersection with Route 609 (Hells Bend Road); thence in a westerly direction with Route 609 

(Hells Bend Road) to its intersection with Roundabout Creek and following Roundabout Creek in 

a southerly direction to its intersection with the Rivanna River; thence in an easterly direction 

with the Rivanna River to its intersection with the James River and following the James River in 

a southwesterly and westerly direction to its intersection with Route 646 (Hardware Road); 

thence in a northerly direction with Route 646 (Hardware Road) to its intersection with Route 6 

(West River Road): thence in an easterly direction with Route 6 (West River Road) to its 

intersection with the western edge of census block 2066; thence in a southerly direction with the 

western edge of census block 2066 to its intersection with Route 697 (Cunningham Road); thence 

in an easterly direction with Route 697 (Cunningham Road) to its intersection with Route 6 

(West River Road) and following Route 6 (West River Road) in an easterly direction to its 

intersection with Route 640 (Haden Martin Road); thence in a northerly direction with Route 

640 (Haden Martin Road) to its intersection with Route 15 (James Madison Highway) and 

following Route 15 (James Madison Highway) in a northerly direction to its intersection with 

Route 1007 (Stoneleigh Road), the point of beginning.    

 

Cunningham Election District - Number 4. 

Beginning at the intersection of the James River and Rockfish Creek; thence up the James 

River to its intersection with the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line at Scottsville; thence in a 

northerly direction with the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line to its intersection with Route 53 

(Thomas Jefferson Parkway), following Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) in an easterly 

direction to its intersection with Boston Creek; thence along Boston Creek in an easterly 

direction to its intersection with Jefferson Drive; thence along Jefferson Drive in a southerly 

direction to its intersection with Turkeysag Trail; thence along Turkeysag Trail in a southerly 

direction to its intersection with Windy Way; thence along Windy Way in a northerly direction 

to its intersection with Bridlewood Drive; thence along Bridlewood Drive in a southerly 

direction to its intersection with Turkeysag Trail; thence along Turkeysag Trail in a westerly 

direction to its intersection with Route 53(Thomas Jefferson Parkway); thence along Route 53 

(Thomas Jefferson Parkway) in an easterly direction to its intersection with U. S. Route 15 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, June 15
th

, 2011 

Page 10 

 

 

(James Madison Highway); thence in a southerly direction with Route 15 (James Madison 

Highway) to its intersection with State Route 640 (Haden Martin Road); thence in a southerly 

direction with Route 640 (Haden Martin Road) to its intersection with State Route 6 (West River 

Road); thence along Route 6 (West River Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with 

State Route 640 (Cunningham Road); thence along Route 640 (Cunningham Road) in a westerly 

direction to its intersection with State Route 697 (Cunningham Road); thence along Route 

697(Cunningham Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with the westerly boundary of 

Census Block 2002; thence along the westerly boundary of Census Block 2002 in a northerly 

direction to its intersection with State Route 6 (West River Road); thence along Route 6 (West 

River Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with State Route 646 (Hardware Road); 

thence along Route 646 (Hardware Road) in a southerly direction to its intersection with Census 

Block 2003; thence along the southerly boundary of Census Block 2003 in an easterly direction 

to its intersection with Rockfish Creek; thence down Rockfish Creek to its intersection with the 

James River, the point of beginning. 

 Beginning at the intersection of Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Highway) and the Fluvanna-

Albemarle County Line and following Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Highway) in an easterly 

direction to its intersection with Route 619 (Ruritan Lake Road); thence in a westerly direction 

with Route 619 (Ruritan Lake Road) to its intersection with Route 693(Bell Farms Lane); thence 

in a southerly direction with Route 693(Bell Farms Lane) to its intersection with the Middle Fork 

of Cunningham Creek and following Cunningham Creek in a westerly direction to its 

intersection with the power line right-of-way; thence in a southeasterly direction with the power 

line right-of-way to its intersection with Route 640 (Haden Martin Road) and following Route 

640 (Haden Martin Road) in a southerly direction to its intersection with Route 6 (West River 

Road); thence in a westerly direction with Route 6 (West River Road) to its intersection with 

Route 697 (Cunningham Road); thence in a westerly direction with Route 697 (Cunningham 

Road) to its intersection with the western boundary of census block 2066; thence in a northerly 

direction with the western boundary of census block 2066 to its intersection with Route 6 (West 

River Road) and following Route 6 (West River Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection 

with Route 646 (Hardware Road); thence in a southerly direction with Route 646 (Hardware 

Road) to its intersection with the James River and following the James River in a westerly 

direction to its intersection with the Fluvanna-Albemarle County Line; thence in a northerly 

direction with the Fluvanna-Albemarle County Line to its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas 

Jefferson Highway), the point of beginning.   

  

 South Rivanna Election District – Number 5.   

 Beginning at the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line at its intersection with State Route 53 

(Thomas Jefferson Parkway), following the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line in a northerly 

direction to its intersection with the Rivanna River, following the Rivanna River in a 

southeasterly direction until its intersection with the northerly boundary of Census Block 2034 to 

the intersection of Route 600, following Route 600 (South Boston Road) in a southerly direction 

to its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway); thence along Route 53 (Thomas 

Jefferson Parkway) in a westerly direction to its intersection with Turkeysag Trail; thence along 

Turkeysag Trail in a northerly direction to its intersection with Bridlewood Drive; thence along 

Bridlewood Drive in a northerly direction to its intersection with Windy Way; thence along 

Windy Way in a northerly direction to its intersection with Turkeysag Trail; thence along 

Turkeysag Trail in a northerly direction to its intersection with Jefferson Drive; thence along 

Jefferson Drive in a northerly direction to its intersection with Boston Creek; thence along 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, June 15
th

, 2011 

Page 11 

 

 

Boston Creek in a westerly direction to its intersection with State Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson 

Parkway); thence along Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) in a westerly direction to its 

intersection with the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line, the point of beginning.   

 Beginning at the intersection of Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Highway) and Route 600 

(South Boston Road) and following Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Highway) in a westerly 

direction to its intersection with Boston Creek (a tributary of Lake Monticello); thence in an 

easterly direction with Boston Creek (a tributary of Lake Monticello) to its intersection with 

Jefferson Drive and following Jefferson Drive in an easterly direction to its intersection with 

North Bearwood Drive; thence in a northerly direction along the western boundary of census 

block 3002 (extending from Nutwood Circle) to its intersection with the Lake Monticello 

shoreline; thence in an easterly direction along the southern shoreline of Lake Monticello to its 

intersection with Jefferson Drive along an unnamed tributary extending south from Lake 

Monticello to its intersection with Jefferson Drive; thence in an easterly direction with Jefferson 

Drive to its intersection with Slice Road; thence in an easterly direction with Slice Road to its 

intersection with Route 600 (South Boston Road); thence in a southwesterly direction with Route 

600 (South Boston Road) to its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Highway), the point 

of beginning.   

 

 North Rivanna Election District - Number 6. 

 Beginning at the intersection of Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Highway) and Boston Creek 

(a tributary of Lake Monticello) and following Boston Creek (a tributary of Lake Monticello) in 

an easterly direction to its intersection with Jefferson Drive; thence in an easterly direction with 

Jefferson Drive to its intersection with North Bearwood Drive; thence in a northerly direction 

along the western boundary of census block 3002 (extending from Nutwood Circle) to the Lake 

Monticello shoreline and proceeding in an easterly direction along the southern shoreline to its 

intersection with Jefferson Drive along an unnamed tributary extending south from Lake 

Monticello to Jefferson Drive; thence in an easterly direction with Jefferson Drive to its 

intersection with Slice Road; thence in an easterly direction with Slice Road to its intersection 

with Route 600 (South Boston Road) and following Route 600 (South Boston Road) in a 

northerly direction to its intersection with the Lake Monticello dam’s outlet stream; thence in a 

westerly direction with the Lake Monticello dam’s outlet stream to its intersection with Jefferson 

Drive and following Jefferson Drive in a westerly direction to its intersection with Monish Drive; 

thence in a southerly direction with Monish Drive to its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas 

Jefferson Highway); thence in an easterly direction with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Highway) 

to its intersection with Boston Creek (a tributary of Lake Monticello), the point of beginning.    

 

 

 Zion Election District – Number 7.   

 Beginning at a point in the Fluvanna-Louisa County Line at its intersection with Route 

250 (Richmond Road) west of the intersection of Route 15 (James Madison Highway) and Route 

250 (Richmond Road) at Zion Crossroads; thence along the Fluvanna-Louisa County Line to its 

intersection with Route 15 (James Madison Highway) and following Route 15 (James Madison 

Highway) in a southerly direction to its intersection with Route 616 (Union Mills Road); thence 

in a westerly direction with Route 616 (Union Mills Road) to its intersection with Mechunk 

Creek; thence in a southerly direction with Mechunk Creek to its intersection with the Rivanna 

River and following the Rivanna River in a westerly direction to its intersection with the 

Fluvanna-Albemarle County Line; thence in a northerly direction with the Fluvanna-Albemarle 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, June 15
th

, 2011 

Page 12 

 

 

County Line to its intersection with the Fluvanna-Louisa County Line and following the 

Fluvanna-Louisa County Line in an  easterly direction to a point in the Fluvanna-Louisa County 

Line at its intersection with Route 250 (Richmond Road) west of the intersection of Route 15 

(James Madison Highway) and Route 250 (Richmond Road) at Zion Crossroads, the point of 

beginning.     

 

(Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-1-81; Ord. 5-15-91; Ord. 5-16-01) 

 

Sec.  2-2-5.  Supervisors elected biennially; terms. 
 

The members of the county board of supervisors shall be elected biennially for four-year 

terms. (Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 5-16-01) 

 

Sec.  2-2-6.  One supervisor elected from each district. 
 

One supervisor shall be elected from each election district established by this article., 

except that there shall be two supervisors elected from the Rivanna District, the terms of which 

supervisors shall not be coterminous.  (Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-1-

81; Ord. 5-15-91; Ord. 5-16-01) 

 

(2) The effective date of the new election districts and corresponding precincts, as set  

      forth herein, shall be in accordance with Virginia Code Section 24.2-311.  The     

      following schedule shall control the elections for the Board of Supervisors and the  

      School Board: 

 

 Board of Supervisors: 

Palmyra District  Term ends 12/31/11 2011 Election 

Fork Union District   Term ends 12/31/11  2011 Election 

South Rivanna District   Term ends 12/31/11  2011 Election 

Zion District   No current term 2011 Election 

Columbia District  Term ends 12/31/13  2013 Election 

North Rivanna District Term ends 12/31/13  2013 Election 

Cunningham District  Term ends 12/31/13  2013 Election 

 

School Board: 

 Palmyra District  Term ends 12/31/11 2011 Election 

 Fork Union District  Term ends 12/31/11 2011 Election 

 North Rivanna District Term ends 12/31/11 2011 Election 

 Zion District   No current term 2011 Election 

 Columbia District  Term ends 12/31/13 2013 Election 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, June 15
th

, 2011 

Page 13 

 

 

 South Rivanna District Term ends 12/31/13 2013 Election 

 Cunningham District  Term ends 12/31/13 2013 Election 

 

DRAFT 
 

 



1 

 

NOTE:   The County Attorney is willing to accept the same rate as for FY10 [which 

was a reduction in their hourly rates for non-routine services of approximately 5% across 

the board]; the “flat” monthly fee would not increase from the existing figure of $5,000; 

and all other terms of the agreement would remain the same from the current year. 

 

MOTION: I move to extend the County Attorney’s contract for services for one year 

[at the reduced rate for FY10] commencing July 1
st
 2011 and ending June 30

th
 2012 with 

a flat fee of $5,000 per month and an hourly rate for non-routine services as follows, 

effective July 1
st
 2011: 

 

 Frederick W. Payne   $280 

 Robert P. Hodous   $280 

 Donna R. DeLoria   $235 

 William W. Tanner   $210 

 Jessica F. Smith   $180 

 Kristina M. Hoffman   $150 

 Paralegals    $85 

 Assistants [when applicable]  $65 
 

 

AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  DATE:  July 6, 2011 

 

SUBJECT: Extension of contract for the County Attorney. 

 

ISSUE:  On November 3
rd

 1999, the Board of Supervisors approved the contract 

for legal services and chose alternative #2 for the method of payment.  This is an annual 

extension that was also approved in 2000 and subsequent years. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Board of Supervisors approve the 

extension. 

 

TIMING: The County Attorney’s current contract will terminate on June 30
th

 2011. 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS/LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  The County Attorney’s flat 

rate fee was increased from $4,000 in 1999 to $4,500 in 2003 and increased to $5,000 per 

month in 2006.  The following is a table of non-routine service fee increases since 1999 

for comparison purposes: 

 

  1999  2003  2005  2008 2009 2010 2011 

Payne  $160  $225  $250  $295 $280 $280 $280 

Hodous $160  $225  $250  $295 $280 $280 $280 

Jr. Partner $135 

DeLoria   $190  $210  $250 $235 $235 $235 

Tanner    $160  $175  $225 $210 $210 $210 

Smith      $150  $190 $180 $180 $180 

Wells, Jr.     $150  $160 $150 $150 $150 

Paralegal $  50  $  70  $  85  $  90 $  85 $  85  $ 85 

Assistant        $  50  $  60  $  70 $  65 $  85 $  85 

 

 

 



2 

 

 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS: If this extension is not granted, then the county 

would have to either renegotiate the terms of this agreement or procure legal services by 

July 6
th

 2011. 

 

 

Staff: Mary L. Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

 

Copy: Frederick W. Payne, County Attorney 

 

Attachments: email from County Attorney regarding non-routine fees, for FY11 

Extract – BOS minutes of June 3
rd

 2009 

email from County Attorney regarding non-routine fees, for fiscal year  

  2009/10 

Extract – BOS minutes of July 2
nd

 2008 

  copy of previous motion and action dated June 18
th

 2008 

email from County Attorney regarding non-routine fees, effective August  

   1
st
 2008 

  Extract – BOS minutes of June 20
th

 2007 

  Extract – BOS minutes of June 7
th

 2006 

  email from County Attorney regarding flat fee increase from $4,500 to  

   $5,000 effective July 1
st
 2006 

  Extract – BOS minutes of June 1
st
 2005 

  Letter from County Attorney for Contract Services effective January 1
st
  

   2005 

  Extract – BOS minutes of June 16
th

 2004 

  Extract – BOS minutes of May 21
st
 2003 

  Letter from County Attorney for Contract Services effective January 1
st
  

   2003 

  Extract – BOS minutes June 19
th

 2002 

  Extract – BOS minutes June 20
th

 2001 

  Extract – BOS minutes June 19
th

 2000 

  copy of minutes page from BOS minutes of November 3
rd

 1999 accepting  

   County Attorney proposal 

  Letter from County Attorney regarding compensation proposal dated  

   August 26
th

 1999 

 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

 

Comments: 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

























































 1 

MOTION:  I move the adoption of the “Resolution Updating the Fluvanna County Pay 
and Classification Plan” effective July 1, 2011. 
 
AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS July 6, 2011 
 
 
SUBJECT:  Annual update of existing County Pay and Classification Plan. 
 
TIMING:  Needs action prior to July payroll processing.   
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: There are no costs associated with plan implementation.  
Due to the state of the economy, the FY 2012 Pay and Classification Plan reflects no 
change from the FY 2009, FY 2010, and FY2011 Pay and Classification Plans. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: None 
 
DISCUSSION: This action will adopt a pay and classification system covering all 
employees of the County Administrator, the Constitutional Officers and their employees, 
and the Registrar. 
 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY: This action is taken every year. 
 
 
Staff: Barbara M. Wall-Magee,   Human Resources Manager  
 
Attachments:   Resolution 
  Proposed Fluvanna County Pay and Classification Plan 
 
 
 
 
************************************** 
County Administrator’s Use Only 
 
 _______________________________________ 
Jay Scudder, Interim County Administrator 



 2 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
County of Fluvanna 
Palmyra, Virginia 

 
 

RESOLUTION  
UPDATING THE FLUVANNA COUNTY PAY AND CLASSIFICATION PLAN 

 
 At a regular monthly meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors held 
on Wednesday, July 6, 2011, in Palmyra, Virginia, the following action was taken: 
 
 

Present Vote 
John Y. Gooch, Chairman  
Shaun V. Kenney, Vice-Chairman  
Mozell H. Booker 
Joseph C. Chesser  
Christopher S. Fairchild  
Donald W. Weaver  

 
 
 On a motion by __________________, seconded by ___________________, and 
voted in the affirmative, the following resolution was adopted: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors maintains a pay and 
classification plan for employees of the County Administrator, Constitutional Officers, 
and Registrar; and, 
 

WHEREAS, staff has followed standard procedures for maintenance of the pay 
and classification plan involving annual performance appraisals, periodic public and 
private wage comparisons, and an annual review of the position classifications; and, 

 
 WHEREAS, the County Budget has been adopted providing for the FY 2012 Pay 
and Classification Plan to be identical to the FY 2009, 2010, & 2011 Pay and 
Classification Plans and with no Merit Increases or Cost of Living Adjustments for FY 
2012; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Fluvanna County Board of 
Supervisors hereby adopts the Pay and Classification Plan effective July 1, 2011.  
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
John Y. Gooch, Chairman 
 



 3 

 
FY 12 

FLUVANNA COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011 

           Salary 
          Grade 
 

MIN MID MAX 
   

MIN MID MAX 

           1 Annual 15,674.38 20,063.21 24,460.80 
 

16 Annual 40,310.40 51,599.38 62,878.40 

 
Hourly 7.54 9.65 11.76 

 
  Hourly 19.38 24.81 30.23 

           2 Annual 16,702.40 21,367.32 26,041.60 
 

17 Annual 42,931.20 54,953.34 66,976.00 
  Hourly 8.03 10.27 12.52 

  
Hourly 20.64 26.42 32.20 

           3 Annual 17,784.00 22,756.19 27,726.40 
 

18 Annual 45,718.40 58,525.31 71,323.20 

 
Hourly 8.55 10.94 13.33 

 
  Hourly 21.98 28.14 34.29 

           4 Annual 18,928.00 24,235.34 29,536.00 
 

19 Annual 48,692.80 62,329.45 75,961.60 
  Hourly 9.10 11.65 14.20 

  
Hourly 23.41 29.97 36.52 

           5 Annual 20,155.20 25,810.64 31,449.60 
 

20 Annual 51,854.40 66,380.87 80,912.00 

 
Hourly 9.69 12.41 15.12 

 
  Hourly 24.93 31.91 38.90 

           6 Annual 21,465.60 27,488.33 33,508.80 
 

21 Annual 55,224.00 70,695.62 86,153.60 
  Hourly 10.32 13.22 16.11 

  
Hourly 26.55 33.99 41.42 

           7 Annual 22,880.00 29,275.07 35,672.00 
 

22 Annual 58,822.40 75,290.84 91,769.60 

 
Hourly 11.00 14.07 17.15 

 
  Hourly 28.28 36.20 44.12 

           8 Annual 24,356.80 31,177.95 38,001.60 
 

23 Annual 62,649.60 80,184.74 97,718.40 
  Hourly 11.71 14.99 18.27 

  
Hourly 30.12 38.55 46.98 

           9 Annual 25,937.60 33,204.52 40,476.80 
 

24 Annual 66,726.40 85,396.75 104,083.20 

 
Hourly 12.47 15.96 19.46 

 
  Hourly 32.08 41.06 50.04 

           10 Annual 27,622.40 35,362.82 43,097.60 
 

25 Annual 71,052.80 90,947.54 110,843.20 
  Hourly 13.28 17.00 20.72 

  
Hourly 34.16 43.72 53.29 

           11 Annual 29,432.00 37,661.40 45,905.60 
 

26 Annual 75,670.40 96,859.13 118,040.00 

 
Hourly 14.15 18.11 22.07 

 
  Hourly 36.38 46.57 56.75 

           12 Annual 31,345.60 40,109.39 48,880.00 
 

27 Annual 80,600.00 103,154.97 125,715.20 
  Hourly 15.07 19.28 23.50 

  
Hourly 38.75 49.59 60.44 

           13 Annual 33,363.20 42,716.50 52,062.40 
 

28 Annual 85,820.80 109,860.05 133,889.60 

 
Hourly 16.04 20.54 25.03 

 
  Hourly 41.26 52.82 64.37 

           14 Annual 35,547.20 45,493.07 55,452.80 
 

29 Annual 91,416.00 117,000.95 142,604.80 
  Hourly 17.09 21.87 26.66 

  
Hourly 43.95 56.25 68.56 

           15 Annual 37,856.00 48,450.12 59,051.20 
 

30 Annual 97,344.00 124,606.01 151,860.80 

 
Hourly 18.20 23.29 28.39 

 
  Hourly 46.80 59.91 73.01 

      
          

            





















































































































1 
 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 

FROM: Barbara Wall-Magee  

SUBJECT: Details on Employee Bonus 

DATE: June 29, 2011 

 

On April 20th, 2011 the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors adopted the FY 2012 Budget which 
included the payment of a monetary bonus to employees.  The cost of this bonus is to be absorbed by 
savings in the FY 2011 budget that ends on June 30, 2011.   
 
The Code of Virginia states the payment of a bonus shall be authorized by Ordinance.   A Public 
Hearing on the Ordinance will be held on Wednesday, July 6th.  The purpose of this memo is to 
provide detailed information on the proposed bonus criteria and cost. 
 
As of the June 24, 2011, there were 142 individuals on the Fluvanna County Payroll.  This number 
does not include elected or appointed board members or seasonal employees (Camp Counselors).  
Members of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors will not be eligible for this bonus since their 
compensation is subject to a separate ordinance. 
 
You should be aware of the demographics of this employee group.  Eighty (80) percent live in 
Fluvanna County.  Their average age is 44.1 years and their average length of service is 7.6 years.  
As with all County residents, their disposable income went down as County Real Estate and Personal 
Property taxes increased.  This bonus would be their first salary action since July of 2008, which is 
when the last COLA (Cost of Living increase) was given.  Over the course of the past several years 
positions went unfilled, and employees have worked hard to pick up additional duties in order to 
prevent drop in service levels.  This bonus will send a message that the Board appreciates what 
employees are doing for the betterment of Fluvanna County. 
 
Jay Scudder, Renee Hoover and Barbara Wall-Magee met twice to discuss the bonus.  The group is 
proposing the following: 
 

• All active employees on the Fluvanna County Payroll on July 1, 2011 will be eligible for the 
bonus; 

• The bonus will be paid as a separate check with the July 22, 2011 payroll; 
• Full-time employees with more than one year of service will get a bonus of $500 and a pro-

rated amount will be given to part-time employees and employees with less than one year of 
service. 

 
 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA 
“Responsive & Responsible Government” 

P.O. Box 540, Palmyra, VA 22963  · (434) 591-1910  ·  FAX (434) 591-1911  · www.co.fluvanna.va.us 



2 
 

The following chart details the actual cost of the bonus: 
  

Employee Type Amount Number  Amount  
Full-time $500 112  $             56,000.00  
Part-time up to 30 hr/wk $375 1  $                  375.00  
Part-time up to 20 hr/wk $250 9  $               2,250.00  
Part-time < 19 hr/wk $150 6  $                  900.00  
Full-time Employees with 
< 1 YOS 

$175 13  $               2,275.00  

Part-time Employees with 
< 1 YOS 

$100 1  $                  100.00  

Sub Total Bonus    $             61,900.00  
FICA    $               4,735.35  

Total Bonus & FICA    $             66,635.35  
 
 
The pro-rating was based on the same formula currently used to allocate annual leave and sick time 
hours to part-time employees. 
 
If distributed as proposed the total cost of the bonus, based on the current census which is subject to 
change, is $66,635.35. 



3 
 

 
MOTION: I move that the Board adopt the ordinance entitled “AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND THE FLUVANNA COUNTY CODE BY THE ADDITION IN CHAPTER 2 OF 
AN ARTICLE 8, SECTION 2-8, CONCERNING PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION OF 
COUNTY OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS”. 
 
AGENDA    BOARD OF SUPERVISORS   DATE: July 6, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:  Section 15.2-1508 of the Code of Virginia states the payment of employee bonuses 
shall be authorized by ordinance. A public hearing on the ordinance was held on July 6, 2011. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt the ordinance that gives the Board of Supervisors the authority 
to pay a monetary bonus. 
 
TIMING:  Routine  
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None.  The ordinance simply gives the Board the authority to pay a 
bonus if they so desire. 
   
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  This action is to comply with state statue.  
 
DISCUSSION:  On April 20th, 2011 the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors adopted the 
FY 2012 Budget which included the payment of a monetary bonus to employees.  The Code of 
Virginia states the payment of a bonus shall be authorized by ordinance.  
 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY: None 
 
Staff: Barbara M. Wall-Magee, Human Resources Manager 
 
Attachments:  
Ordinance  
Request for Advertisement 
Public Hearing Advertisement  
 
Copy:  
**************************************  
County Administrator’s Use Only  
 
_______________________________________  
Jay Scudder, County Administrator  



4 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FLUVANNA COUNTY CODE BY THE ADDITION 
IN CHAPTER 2 OF AN ARTICLE 8, SECTION 2-8, CONCERNING PAYMENT OF 

COMPENSATION OF COUNTY OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE FLUVANNA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, pursuant to 
Virginia Code Sections 15.2-1500 and -1508, that the County Code be, and it is hereby, 
amended, in Chapter 2, by the addition of an Article 8, Section 2-8, which is hereby enacted as 
follows: 

ARTICLE 8.  Compensation of Employees, Officers, Agents 
 

Sec. 2-8.  Compensation of county officers, employees and agents. 
 

Except as otherwise provided by law, all officers, employees and agents of the County 
shall receive as compensation for their services such sums as may be appropriated therefor in the 
annual budget as the same may be amended from time to time, in accordance with the terms of 
the pay plan as in effect or with the terms of any contract in the case of persons serving under 
contract with the County.  In addition to such compensation, monetary bonuses to county officers 
and employees are authorized and may be paid, from time to time, as authorized by the Board of 
Supervisors. 



5 
 

(Seal) 
PUBLIC HEARING 

FLUVANNA COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
The Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors will conduct a public hearing pursuant to Section 15.2-
1500 and -1508 of the Code of Virginia, on Wednesday, July 6th,  2011 at 2:00 p.m. in the Circuit 
Courtroom of the Fluvanna Courts Building in Palmyra, Virginia in order to receive public input on 
the following:  
 

To receive comments on the proposed ordinance to authorize the payment of monetary 
bonuses to County officers and employees.  
 

The full text of the ordinance is on file in the County Administrator’s office and may be reviewed 
during regular work hours. The public is invited to attend the public hearing. The phone number of 
the County Administrator’s office is 434-591-1910. 
 
Any parties wishing to be heard are requested to attend the public hearing. 
  
It is the County’s intent to comply with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act. 
Should you need special accommodations, please contact the County Administrator’s Office at the 
number listed above prior to July 6th, 2011.  
 
Authorized by 
 Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors  

 
TO:   The Fluvanna Review  

Attn: Evelyn Inskeep  
 
THRU:   County Attorney  
 
Advertise on the following dates:  Thursday, June 23th, 2011   

Thursday, June 30th, 2011  
Bill to:  Fluvanna County  

Board of Supervisors  
******************************************  

Mary L. Weaver 
Contact Information  

Administrative Assistant/  
Clerk, Board of Supervisors  
Fluvanna County  
P. O. Box 540  
Palmyra, VA 22963  
434-591-1910 (ph)  
434-591-1913 (fax)  
mweaver@co.fluvanna.va.us (email) 



6 
 

 



MOTION:  I move that the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors approve the attached 
redistricting ordinance reapportioning its electoral districts consistent with its decennial 
redistricting mandate.  Further, I move to forward these proposed changes to the County 
Attorney for prompt submission to the Department of Justice.  
 
AGENDA   BOARD OF SUPERVISORS   July 06, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:  Reapportionment of Electoral Districts 
 
TIMING:  Needs action by the Board for a timely Department of Justice (DOJ) review prior to 
the impending November elections.   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: This action will reapportion the County’s electoral districts in 
accordance with DOJ’s guidelines as disseminated by the State Electoral Board.  The drafted 
ordinance would remove an election district from the county which would affect all elected and 
appointed boards, commissions, and committees in the county.   
 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  Each locality is required to address the issue of redistricting for 
local election districts as part of the decennial census process.   
 
DISCUSSION:  The Redistricting Committee was appointed by the Board in March and 
consisted of two Board members who consulted with staff as necessary.  The committee 
forwarded four maps for public input at the April 28th redistricting open house – two six district 
scenarios and two seven district scenarios.  As a result of the open house, the committee 
forwarded one five district scenario, along with one six and one seven district scenario for Board 
consideration.  On May 4th the Board decided that it wanted to further examine the five and 
seven district scenarios and discussed two five district and three seven district scenarios at its 
May 18th meeting.  On June 15th the motion for a seven district ordinance failed and the Board 
then chose to advertise the Five District Scenario 1C option for a public hearing on July 6th.  All 
of the publicly presented and discussed scenarios have been prominently displayed on the 
County’s website in an effort to keep the public informed. 
 
The Board must choose a scenario to forward to the Department of Justice for their review and 
approval as far in advance of the November elections as possible. The County Attorney’s office 
stands ready to promptly submit the chosen redistricting plan. 
 
Please advise if further information is needed. 
 
Staff: Darren K. Coffey, Planning Director 
 Frederick W. Payne, County Attorney 
 
Copy: William P. “Jay” Scudder, County Administrator 
 
Attachments:    

A. Redistricting Ordinance 
B. Redistricting Map  

 
************************************** 
County Administrator’s Use Only 
 
 
________________________________________________ 
William P. “Jay” Scudder, County Administrator 

2



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT THE FLUVANNA COUNTY CODE IN 
CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2, SECTIONS 2-2-3, 2-2-4, AND 2-2-6 CONCERNING 

REAPPORTIONMENT OF ELECTION DISTRICTS 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE FLUVANNA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, as follows: 
 

(1)  That the County Code be, and it is hereby, amended and reenacted, in Chapter 2, Article 
2, Sections 2-2-3, 2-2-4, and 2-2-6, as follows: 

 
Article 2.  Election Districts. 

 
Sec.  2-2-1.  Created and established. 
 

Pursuant to authority contained in Title 24.2, Ch. 3, Article 2.1, Sections 24.2-304.1, ff., 
and Title 24.2, Ch. 3, Article 3, Sections 24.2-305, ff., of the Code of Virginia, the election 
districts and their respective polling places for the county are hereby created and established as 
set forth in this article.  (Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-1-81; Ord. 5-15-91; 
Ord. 5-16-01) 
 
Sec.  2-2-2.  Magisterial districts unaffected by article; representation to be by 
   election district. 
 

The magisterial districts of the county, with boundary lines and names thereof 
respectively as constituted and known on the day before the ordinance from which this article 
derives took effect, shall remain the same, but representation on the governing body shall be by -
election districts described in this article.  (Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-
1-81; Ord. 5-15-91; Ord. 5-16-01) 

  
Sec.  2-2-3.  Districts enumerated; populations and polling places; precincts.1 
 
(a) The election districts, with populations and polling places set forth, are as follows: 
 

Name  Population  Polling Place 
 

Palmyra  3467 5355  Palmyra Fire House2 
Columbia  3255 5089  Kents Store Agricultural  
                                                                       Recreation Center3 

Fork Union  3204 4748  Fluvanna County Community Center 
Cunningham  3372 5229  Antioch Baptist Church4 

                                                           
1 For state law as to central absentee voter precinct, see Code of Va., § 24.2-712. 
2 Change in Palmyra polling place was adopted 11-15-06; federal preclearance was obtained 1-

29-07. 
3 Change in Columbia polling place was adopted 6-15-05; federal preclearance was obtained 9-2-

05. 
4 Change in Cunningham polling place was adopted 7-18-07; federal preclearance was obtained 
9-5-07. 

3

Attachment A



Rivanna  6749 5270  Lake Monticello Fire & Rescue  
       Building 
       Lake Monticello Clubhouse 
 
(b) Precincts shall be known by their respective polling places and shall be coterminous with 

the respective electoral districts. , except that, for the Rivanna District, there shall be two 
precincts, as follows: 

 
(1) Lake Monticello Fire and Rescue Precinct shall be that portion of the Rivanna District 

southerly from a line running from the intersection of Jefferson Drive and South 
Bearwood Drive; thence along South Bearwood Drive in a northerly direction to the 
intersection of South Bearwood Drive and Kingswood Road; thence along 
Kingswood Road to its terminus and continuing in a direct line easterly to the center 
of Lake Monticello; thence along the center of Lake Monticello in an easterly 
direction to a direct line, the northerly extension of Chatham Lane; thence in a 
southerly direction along Chatham Lane to its intersection with Woodridge Road; 
thence along Woodridge Road in an easterly direction to its intersection with 
Jefferson Drive; thence in a westerly direction along Jefferson Drive to its 
intersection with Slice Road;  thence along Slice Road in an easterly direction to the 
intersection with State Route 600 (South Boston Road); 

 
(2) Lake Monticello Clubhouse Precinct shall be that portion of the Rivanna District 

northerly from the line described in the preceding subsection. 
 
(c) In addition to the foregoing precincts, there is hereby established a central absentee 

voting precinct, which shall be in the Historic Courthouse5, Palmyra, Virginia.  The 
central absentee voting precinct shall be used for all elections. 

 
(Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-1-81; Ord. 5-15-91; Ord. 1-18-95; Ord. 5-
16-01; Ord. 3-20-02; Ord. 11-15-06; Ord. 7-18-07; Ord. 2-18-09) 
 
 
Sec.  2-2-4.  District boundaries. 
 

The boundaries of the respective election districts are as set forth below: 
 

Palmyra Election District - Number 1. 
 Beginning at the intersection of the Rivanna River and the Albemarle County border and 
following the Rivanna River in a southeasterly direction until its intersection with the northerly 
border of Census Block 2034 to the intersection of Route 600 (South Boston Road), Fluvanna-
Albemarle County line and Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) and following Route 53 
(Thomas Jefferson Parkway) in an easterly direction to its intersection with Route 618 (Lake 
Monticello Road), thence in a northerly direction with Route 618 (Lake Monticello Road) 
approximately 2400 feet to its intersection with the eastern property line of 557 Jefferson Drive 
                                                           
5 Change in central absentee voting precinct was adopted 2-18-09; federal preclearance was 
obtained 5-5-09. 

4



(Tax Map Parcel 18A-5-235), thence in a southeasterly direction with the property line of 557 
Jefferson Drive (Tax Map Parcel 18A-5-235) to the intersection of Jefferson Drive and Lafayette 
Drive, thence in a southeasterly direction with Lafayette Drive to its intersection with Northwood 
Road, thence in a southerly direction with Northwood Road to its intersection with Jefferson 
Drive, thence in an easterly direction with Jefferson Drive to its intersection with Slice Road, 
thence in an easterly direction with Slice Road to its intersection with Route 600 (South Boston 
Road) and following Route 600 (South Boston Road) in a southerly direction to its intersection 
with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway), following Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) in 
an easterly direction to its intersection with Route 15 (James Madison Highway), following 
Route 15 (James Madison Highway) in a northerly direction to its intersection with the northern 
edge of census block 1067, thence in an easterly direction with the northern edge of census block 
1067 to its intersection with Burke Creek, a tributary of the Rivanna River, and following Burke 
Creek in an easterly direction to its intersection with the Rivanna River, thence in a 
southeasterly direction with the Rivanna River to its intersection with Route 15 (James Madison 
Highway) and following Route 15 (James Madison Highway) in a northerly direction to its 
intersection with Route 631 (Troy Road), thence in a westerly direction with Route 631 (Troy 
Road) to its intersection with Wounded Knee Lane, thence in a northerly direction with Wounded 
Knee Lane to its intersection with Ghost Dance Lane and following Ghost Dance Lane in a 
northerly direction to its intersection with Route 631 (Troy Road), thence in a northerly direction 
with Route 631 (Troy Road) to its intersection with Route 250 (Richmond Road), thence in a 
westerly direction with Route 250 (Richmond Road) to its intersection with Prison Lane, thence 
in a southerly direction with Prison Lane to its intersection with census block 2059 and 
following census block 2059 to its intersection with Prison Lane, thence in a northerly direction 
with Prison Lane to its intersection with Route 250 (Richmond Road) and following Route 250 
(Richmond Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with Route 627 (Zion Road), thence 
in a northeasterly direction with Route 627 (Zion Road) to its intersection with Edd Ridge Lane, 
thence in a northerly direction with Edd Ridge Lane to its intersection with Cedar Ridge Road, 
thence in a northerly direction with Cedar Ridge Road to its intersection with the Fluvanna-
Louisa County line, thence in a westerly direction following with the Fluvanna-Louisa County 
line, then in a southerly direction following to its intersection with the Fluvanna-Albemarle 
County line, thence in a southerly direction with the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line  to its 
intersection with the Rivanna River, Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway), the point of 
beginning. 

 
Columbia Election District - Number 2. 

 Beginning at the intersection of Route 15 (James Madison Highway) and Route 601 
(Courthouse Road) near Palmyra and following Route 15 (James Madison Highway) in a 
northerly direction to its intersection with Route 644 (Salem Church Road), thence in a northerly 
direction with Route 644 (Salem Church Road) to its intersection with Route 616 (Union Mills 
Road), thence in an easterly direction with Route 616 (Union Mills Road) to its intersection with 
Route 15 (James Madison Highway), thence in a northerly direction with Route 15 (James 
Madison Highway) to its intersection with Route 631 (Troy Road), thence in a westerly direction 
with Route 631 (Troy Road) to its intersection with Wounded Knee Lane, thence in a northerly 
direction with Wounded Knee Lane to its intersection with Ghost Dance Lane and following 
Ghost Dance Lane in a northerly direction to its intersection with Route 631 (Troy Road), thence 
in a northerly direction with Route 631 (Troy Road) to its intersection with Route 250 (Richmond 

5



Road), thence in a westerly direction with Route 250 (Richmond Road) to its intersection with 
Prison Lane, thence in a southerly direction with Prison Lane to its intersection with census 
block 2059 and following census block 2059 to its intersection with Prison Lane, thence in a 
northerly direction with Prison Lane to its intersection with Route 250 (Richmond Road), thence 
in a westerly direction with Route 250 (Richmond Road) to its intersection with Route 627 (Zion 
Road), thence in a northeasterly direction with Route 627 (Zion Road) to its intersection with 
Edd Ridge Lane and following Edd Ridge Lane in a northerly direction to its intersection with 
Cedar Ridge Road, thence in a northerly direction with Cedar Ridge Road to its intersection with 
the Fluvanna-Louisa County line ; thence in an and following the Fluvanna-Louisa County line 
in an easterly direction with the Fluvanna-Louisa line to its intersection with the Fluvanna-
Goochland County line, thence in a southerly direction with the Fluvanna-Goochland County 
line to its intersection with the James River, on the east side of the Town of Columbia; and 
following the James River in a westerly direction to its intersection with the Rivanna River, 
thence up the Rivanna River to U. S. Route 15 (James Madison Highway); thence in a northerly 
direction with Route 15 (James Madison Highway) to its intersection with the Fluvanna-Louisa 
County line, thence in a westerly direction with the Rivanna River to its intersection with the 
railroad right-of-way and following the railroad right-of-way in a northeasterly direction to its 
intersection with the Andrew Street road right-of-way, thence in a northerly direction with the 
Andrew Street road right-of-way to its intersection with Route 6 (East River Road) and following 
in a northerly direction then easterly direction with Andrew Street to its intersection with Route 
659 (Stage Junction Road), thence in a northerly direction with Route 659 (Stage Junction Road) 
to its intersection with Route 608 (Wilmington Road), thence in a westerly direction with Route 
608 (Wilmington Road) to its intersection with Route 601 (Courthouse Road) and following 
Route 601 (Courthouse Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with Route 15 (James 
Madison Highway) near Palmyra, the point of beginning. 
 

Fork Union Election District - Number 3. 
Beginning at the common corner of the counties of Fluvanna, Cumberland and 

Goochland east to the Town of Columbia; thence up the James River to its intersection with 
Rockfish Creek; thence up Rockfish Creek to its intersection with the southerly border of Census 
Block 2003; thence along the southerly border of Census Block 2003 in a westerly direction to 
its intersection with State Route 646 (Hardware Road); thence in a northerly direction along 
Route 646 (Hardware Road) to its intersection with State Route 6 (West River Road); thence in a 
northeasterly direction along Route 6 (West River Road) to its intersection with the westerly 
boundary of Census Block 2002; thence with the westerly boundary of Census Block 2002 in a 
southerly direction to its intersection with State Route 697 (Cunningham Road); thence along 
Route 697 (Cunningham Road) in an easterly direction to its intersection with State Route 640 
(Cunningham Road); thence along Route 640 (Cunningham Road) in an easterly direction to its 
intersection with State Route 6 (West River Road); thence along Route 6 (West River Road) in 
an easterly direction to its intersection with State Route 640 (Haden Martin Road); thence in a 
northerly direction with State Route 640 (Haden Martin Road) to its intersection with U. S. 
Route 15 (James Madison Highway); Beginning at the intersection of Route 15 (James Madison 
Highway) and the Rivanna River near Palmyra and following the Rivanna River in a 
northwesterly direction to its intersection with Burke Creek near Pleasant Grove, thence in a 
westerly direction with Burke Creek to its intersection with the northern edge of census block 
1067 and following the northern edge of census block 1067 in a westerly direction to its 

6



intersection with Route 600 (South Boston Road), thence in a southerly direction with Route 600 
(South Boston Road) to its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway), thence in an 
easterly direction with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) to its intersection with Route 619 
(Ruritan Lake Road) and following Route 619 (Ruritan Lake Road) in a westerly direction to its 
intersection with the Cunningham Creek, thence in a westerly direction with Cunningham Creek 
to its intersection with the power line right-of-way and following the power line right-of-way in a 
southeasterly direction to its intersection with Route 693 (Bell Farms Lane), thence in a 
southwesterly direction with Route 693 (Bells Farm Lane) to its intersection with Route 639 
(Long Acre Road) and following Route 639 (Long Acre Road) in a southeasterly direction to its 
intersection with Haislip Lane, thence in a southwesterly direction with Haislip Lane to its 
intersection with Route 620 (Rolling Road) and following Route 620 (Rolling Road)in a westerly 
direction to its intersection with Route 669 (Kidds Dairy Road), thence in a southerly direction 
with Route 669 (Kidds Dairy Road) to its intersection with Windy Ridge Lane and following 
Windy Ridge Lane in a southerly direction to its intersection with the Hardware River, thence in 
a southerly direction with the Hardware River thence in a northerly direction with U.S. Route 15 
(James Madison Highway) to its intersection with the Rivanna River; thence in an easterly 
direction with the Rivanna River to its intersection with the James River and following the James 
River in an easterly direction to its intersection with the Rivanna River, thence in a westerly 
direction with the Rivanna River to its intersection with the railroad right-of-way and following 
the railroad right-of-way in a northeasterly direction to its intersection with the Andrew Street 
road right-of-way, thence in a northerly direction with the Andrew Street road right-of-way to its 
intersection with Route 6 (East River Road), thence in a northerly then easterly direction with 
Andrew Street to its intersection with Route 659 (Stage Junction Road), thence in a northerly 
direction with Route 659 (Stage Junction Road) to its intersection with Route 608 (Wilmington 
Road), thence in a westerly direction with Route 608 (Wilmington Road) to its intersection with 
Route 601 (Courthouse Road), thence in a westerly direction with Route 601 (Courthouse Road) 
to its intersection with Route 15 (James Madison Highway) and following Route 15 (James 
Madison Highway) in a southerly direction to its intersection with the Rivanna River near 
Palmyra, ; thence down the James River, to the point of beginning. 

 
Cunningham Election District - Number 4. 
Beginning at the intersection of the James River and Rockfish Creek; thence up the James 

River to its intersection with the intersection of the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line at 
Scottsville; thence in a northerly direction with the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line to its 
intersection with and Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) and following Route 53 (Thomas 
Jefferson Parkway) in an easterly direction to its intersection with Boston Creek; thence along 
Boston Creek in an easterly direction to its intersection with Jefferson Drive; thence along 
Jefferson Drive in a southerly direction to its intersection with Turkeysag Trail; thence along 
Turkeysag Trail in a southerly direction to its intersection with Windy Way; thence along Windy 
Way in a northerly direction to its intersection with Bridlewood Drive; thence along Bridlewood 
Drive in a southerly direction to its intersection with Turkeysag Trail; thence along Turkeysag 
Trail in a westerly direction to its intersection with Route 53(Thomas Jefferson Parkway); thence 
along Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) in an easterly direction to its intersection with U. S. 
Route 15 (James Madison Highway); thence in a southerly direction with Route 15 (James 
Madison Highway) to its intersection with State Route 640 (Haden Martin Road); thence in a 
southerly direction with Route 640 (Haden Martin Road) to its intersection with State Route 6 

7



(West River Road); thence along Route 6 (West River Road) in a westerly direction to its 
intersection with State Route 640 (Cunningham Road); thence along Route 640 (Cunningham 
Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with State Route 697 (Cunningham Road); thence 
along Route 697(Cunningham Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with the westerly 
boundary of Census Block 2002; thence along the westerly boundary of Census Block 2002 in a 
northerly direction to its intersection with State Route 6 (West River Road); thence along Route 
6 (West River Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with State Route 646 (Hardware 
Road); thence along Route 646 (Hardware Road) in a southerly direction to its intersection with 
Census Block 2003; thence along the southerly boundary of Census Block 2003 in an easterly 
direction to its intersection with Rockfish Creek; thence down Rockfish Creek to its intersection 
with the James River, Route 618 (Lake Monticello Road), thence in a northerly direction with 
Route 618 (Lake Monticello Road) approximately 2,400 feet to its intersection with the eastern 
property line of 557 Jefferson Drive (Tax Map Parcel 18A-5-235), thence in a southeasterly 
direction with the eastern property line of 557 Jefferson Drive (Tax Map Parcel 18A-5-235) to 
the intersection of Jefferson Drive and Lafayette Drive, thence in a southeasterly direction with 
Lafayette Drive to its intersection with Northwood Road, thence in a southerly direction with 
Northwood Road to its intersection with Jefferson Drive, thence in an easterly direction with 
Jefferson Drive to its intersection with Slice Road, thence in an easterly direction with Slice 
Road to its intersection with Route 600 (South Boston Road) and following Route 600 (South 
Boston Road) in a southerly direction its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson 
Parkway), thence in an easterly direction with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) to its 
intersection with Route 619 (Ruritan Lake Road) and following Route 619 (Ruritan Lake Road) 
in a westerly direction to its intersection with Cunningham Creek, thence in a westerly direction 
with Cunningham Creek to its intersection with the power line right-of-way and following the 
power line right-of-way in a southeasterly direction to its intersection with Route 693 (Bell 
Farms Lane), thence in a westerly direction with Route 693 (Bell Farms Lane) to its intersection 
with Route 639 (Long Acre Road) and following Route 639 (Long Acre Road) in a southerly 
direction to its intersection with Haislip Lane, thence in a southwesterly direction with Haislip 
Lane to its intersection with Route 620 (Rolling Road) and following Route 620 (Rolling Road) 
in a westerly direction to its intersection with Route 669 (Kidds Dairy Road), thence in a 
southerly direction along Route 669 (Kidds Dairy Road) to its intersection with Windy Ridge 
Lane and following Windy Ridge Lane in a southerly direction to its intersection with the 
Hardware River, thence in a southerly direction with the Hardware River to its intersection with 
the James River, thence in a westerly direction with the James River to its intersection with the 
Fluvanna-Albemarle County line, thence in a northerly direction with the Fluvanna-Albemarle 
County line to its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway), the point of 
beginning. 

 
Rivanna Election District - Number 5. 

Beginning at the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line at its intersection with State Route 
53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway), following the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line in a northerly 
direction to its intersection with the Rivanna River, following the Rivanna River in a 
southeasterly direction until its intersection with the northerly boundary of Census Block 2034 to 
the intersection of Route 600, following Route 600 (South Boston Road) in a southerly direction 
to its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway); thence along Route 53 (Thomas 
Jefferson Parkway) in a westerly direction to its intersection with Turkeysag Trail; thence along 

8



Turkeysag Trail in a northerly direction to its intersection with Bridlewood Drive; thence along 
Bridlewood Drive in a northerly direction to its intersection with Windy Way; thence along 
Windy Way in a northerly direction to its intersection with Turkeysag Trail; thence along 
Turkeysag Trail in a northerly direction to its intersection with Jefferson Drive; thence along 
Jefferson Drive in a northerly direction to its intersection with Boston Creek; thence along 
Boston Creek in a westerly direction to its intersection with State Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson 
Parkway); thence along Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) in a westerly direction to its 
intersection with the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line, the point of beginning.  Beginning at the 
intersection of Jefferson Drive and Lafayette Road and following Jefferson Drive in an easterly 
(clockwise) direction around Lake Monticello to its intersection with Northwood Road, thence in 
a northerly direction with Northwood Road to its intersection with Lafayette Drive, thence in a 
westerly direction with Lafayette Drive to its intersection with Jefferson Drive, the point of 
beginning.   

 
(Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-1-81; Ord. 5-15-91; Ord. 5-16-01) 
 
Sec.  2-2-5.  Supervisors elected biennially; terms. 
 

The members of the county board of supervisors shall be elected biennially for four-year 
terms. (Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 5-16-01) 
 
Sec.  2-2-6.  One supervisor elected from each district. 
 

One supervisor shall be elected from each election district established by this article., 
except that there shall be two supervisors elected from the Rivanna District, the terms of which 
supervisors shall not be coterminous.  (Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-1-
81; Ord. 5-15-91; Ord. 5-16-01) 

 
  (2)  The effective date of the new election districts and corresponding precincts, as set forth  
         herein, shall be in accordance with Virginia Code Section 24.2-311.  The following        
         schedule shall control the elections for Board of Supervisors and the School Board: 
 
Board of Supervisors: 
Palmyra District  Term ends 12/31/11  2011 Election 
Columbia District  Term ends 12/31/13  2013 Election 
Fork Union District  Term ends 12/31/11  2011 Election 
Cunningham District  Term ends 12/31/13  2013 Election 
Rivanna District  Term ends 12/31/13  2013 Election    
    Term ends 12/31/11  Seat Eliminated  
School Board: 
Palmyra District  Term ends 12/31/11  2011 Election 
Columbia District  Term ends 12/31/13  2013 Election 
Fork Union District  Term ends 12/31/11  2011 Election 
Cunningham District  Term ends 12/13/13  2013 Election 
Rivanna District  Term ends 12/31/13  2013 Election  
    Term ends 12/31/11  Seat Eliminated  

9



"&

"&

WX

WX

"#

"#

Jefferon Dr

Glen Burnie Rd

Ri
va

nn
a R

ive
r

Route 600

Tu
rke

ys
a g

 Tr
ail

Bos
ton

 Cr
ee

k
Je

f fe
r s

on
 Dr

Monish
 D

riv
e

South Boston RdWildwood Dr

J eff
ers

on
 D r

As hlawn Blvd

Rivanna River

Jef
fer

son
 Dr

LM dam
South Bost

on
 Rd

Kin
gs

wo
od

 R
d

La
ke

 Mon
tice

llo 
Rd

Route 53

Rou
te 

61
6

Mechunk Creek

Albemarle County

Je
ffe

rso
n D

r

Ro
ute

 63
6

Ro
ute

 53

Northwood Rd

"&

"&

"&

"&

"&

"&

W X

W X

W X

W X

W X

W X

"#

"#

"#

"#
"#

"#

£ ¤15

£ ¤6

¬ «53

60
1

656

620

£ ¤25
0

61
6

608

61
9

65
9

64
0

61
3

63
2

655

631

630

637

63
9

64
9

65061
8

600

672

66
9

646

65
4

60
4

61
0

647

615

660

60
5

67
6

66
3

653 623

60
9

63
3

671

606

63
6

626

£ ¤15

611

614

696

645

603

688 683

651682

69
3

677

67
9

£ ¤15

656630

631

608

640

63
1

£ ¤6

615 60
1

62
4

61
8

659

600

Pr
op

os
ed

 Fi
ve

 D
ist

ric
t S

ce
na

rio

Le
ge

nd

"#
BO

S A
dd

res
s

W X
PC

 Ad
dre

ss

"&
Sc

ho
ol 

Bo
ard

 Ad
dre

ss

Ra
ilro

ad
s

Uti
lity

 Li
ne

s
Str

ea
ms

Ro
ad

s
Ma

jor
Wa

ter
5D

ist
ric

tS
ce

na
rio

1C
Di

str
ict CO

LU
MB

IA
CU

NN
ING

HA
M

FO
RK

 U
NIO

N
PA

LM
YR

A
RIV

AN
NA

Mechunk Creek

Rivanna River

Hardware River

Ja
mes 

Riv
er

Mid
dl

e F
ork

 Cunnin
gh

am
 C

re e
k

Rivanna R
iv

er

Cu
nn

ing
ha

m

Fo
rk 

Un
ion

Pa
lm

yra

Pa
lm

yra

Co
lum

bia

Ri
va

nn
a

Cu
nn

ing
ha

m

Vo
tin

g D
ist

ric
t

20
00

 
Po

pu
lat

ion
% 

of 
Co

un
ty

20
10

 
Po

pu
lat

ion
% 

of 
Co

un
ty

5 D
ist

ric
t 

De
via

tio
n

Co
lum

bia
3,2

55
16

.2%
5,0

89
19

.8%
-1.

0%
Cu

nn
ing

ha
m

3,3
72

16
.8%

5,2
29

20
.4%

1.8
%

Fo
rk 

Un
ion

3,2
04

16
.0%

4,7
48

18
.5%

-7.
6%

Pa
lm

yra
3,4

67
17

.3%
5,3

55
20

.8%
4.2

%
Riv

an
na

6,7
49

33
.7%

5,2
70

20
.5%

2.6
%

To
tal

20
,04

7
10

0.0
%

25
,69

1
10

0.0
%

1
0

A
tt
a
c
h
m

e
n
t 
B



MOTION: Mr. Chairman, I move to direct staff to advertise a Request for Proposals 

in order to conduct a reassessment of real property to be effective January 1, 2013. 

 

 

 AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  JULY 6, 2011 

 

ISSUE:  A statutory requirement to conduct a new real estate general reassessment to be 

effective January 1, 2013. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  That staff be directed to advertise for Request for Proposals to 

conduct the general reassessment starting no later than October 1, 2011.  In addition, staff 

further recommends that the Board direct staff to ensure that the reassessment of real 

property will be completed no later than November 30, 2012. 

 

TIMING:  The following draft timeline has been developed in order to complete this 

process. 

 

  July 6, 2011 – BOS authorizes release of RFP 

   

  July 20, 2011 – Bid for reassessment solicited 

 

  August 19, 2011 - Reassessment bids returned 

 

September 7, 2011 -  Bids distributed to BOS and Contract Awarded 

   

  September 2011-June 2012 – Reassessment field work 

   

  September 2012 – Reassessment notices mailed 

   

  October 7, 2012 – Appeal hearings scheduled and advertised 

 

  October 10-31 2012 – Appeal hearings held by contractor 

 

November 2012 – Equalization Board Ordinance passed by BOS 

 

December 2012 – Commissioner’s Office recalculating deferred taxes on         

land use applications and relief for the elderly 

 

January 1, 2013 – Effective date of reassessment 

 

January 2013 – Advertise Board of Equalization hearings 

 

April 1, 2013 – Determinations of Board of Equalization filed with 

Commissioner to print 2013 Land Book. 

 

 

 

 

 



FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

 

Cost of Project:  The process takes two fiscal years to complete and therefore the costs 

normally are spread over two fiscal years. Approximately 50% of the anticipated cost are 

included in FY 12 with remaining 50% to be budgeted in FY 13. It is anticipated the costs 

are as follows: 

 

Parcel assessment – 15,760 parcels @ 17.00 per parcel = $267,920 

Temporary Staff - $3,500 

Board of Equalization Costs - $5,000 

Miscellaneous - $2,000 

Total: $278,420 

 

Actual figures may vary depending on the contractor selected. 

 

For budget purposes, approximately 50% of the costs would be incurred in FY12 and 

50% in FY13. 

 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 

 

The Commonwealth of Virginia allows counties to conduct general reassessments of real 

estate on an as necessary basis with one limitation.  Counties with less than 50,000 in 

population may choose to defer general reassessments up to 6 years.  Fluvanna County 

conducted it’s last reassessment in 2007 and therefore must implement a new 

reassessment by 2013. 

 

 

Staff:  Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 

Copy: Mr. Andrew Sheridan, Commissioner of the Revenue 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUEST FOR BIDS 

FLUVANNA COUNTY GENERAL ASSESSMENT 

 

 

The County of Fluvanna, VA is seeking appraisal services for a county-wide general 

reassessment to be effective January 1, 2013. Applicants may obtain an RFB packet at 

www.co.fluvanna.va.us. Proposals are due by September 1, 2011 by 4:00 p.m. and can be 

delivered to County Administrator, PO Box 540, 132 Main Street, Palmyra, VA 22963. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.co.fluvanna.va.us/


REQUEST FOR PROPSALS  

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA, VIRGINIA 

July 20, 2011 

 

GENERAL REASSESSMENT OF REAL PROPERTY 

 

 

I. Introduction 

 

A.  Purpose – This document constitutes a request for sealed                                  

                                          proposals from qualified individuals and organizations to 

                                          provide a general reassessment of all real property for the 

                                          County of Fluvanna in accordance with applicable state 

                                          laws and requirements. 

 

B. Background – The last general reassessment for the County  

was completed in 2006, effective January 1, 2007. 

   

 

 

II. Scope of Work 

 

 

A. General Requirements 

 

1. There are approximately 15,760 parcels of real estate 

in the County broken down as follows: 

 

Taxable – 15,375 Non-taxable – 385 

        

2. The values to be estimated in all cases shall be 100%  

fair market value as required by state law in keeping 

with good appraisal practice. 

 

3. All appraisals will be based on a thorough study of 

recent market sales in the County, with due 

consideration to construction and rental data where 

available and applicable. 

  

4. The market sales analysis will become the property of 

the County at the completion of said program. 



5. The reassessment shall begin by October 1, 2011 and   

shall be completed by November 30, 2012. 

  

6. The County proposes that a Board of Assessors 

will not be appointed and the contractor shall provide 

a professional assessor as provided in Section 58.1-

3275 of the Code of Virginia.  Base your proposal on 

this assumption. 

 

 

B. Specific Requirements 

 

1. The Contractor shall provide and pay for: 

 

a. The Contractor shall provide qualified appraisers  

and furnish to the county (for acceptance or 

rejection) a list of all persons to be employed.  The 

County may require the Contractor to remove from 

the project any person the County considers to be 

unqualified or negligent in the performance of his 

duties, or who is guilty of any misconduct; and such 

person shall not be employed on the project again 

without the County’s written consent. 

 

                                                        b.  The Contractor shall assume all transportation and   

                                                  travel expenses for his employees. 

 

        c.  The Contractor shall appraise, code and prepare 

             computer entry for all parcels in the County. A   

             parcel is defined as each line used on the Land 

             Book. 

 

       d.  The Contractor shall provide adequate insurance  

            coverage to include automobile, public liability and 

            workmen’s compensation and unemployment for its 

            employees.  Said insurance will be designed to save 

            Fluvanna County, its officers and/or officials 

            harmless from all claims, demand, suits, actions, 

            recoveries of judgments of every kind and  

            description brought or recovered against the  

            county, etc., by reason of any act of the Contractor’s  

            firm or employees during the execution of this  

            work. 

 

                                                        

 

 

     

     



     e.  The Contractor shall provide a performance bond 

          in the amount of the contract, which shall be made 

          payable to the County of Fluvanna. 

 

     f.  The Contractor shall supply the Board of             

          Equalization with completed field cards and assist 

          them with appeals. The Contractor shall also provide  

          an appraiser to attend and assist the Board of  

          Equalization at all hearings for equalization   

          appraisals.  When and if a major disagreement on  

          values arise, the Contractor will show both values on  

          the appraisal cards. 

 

    g.  The Contractor shall provide a competent witness for  

         court appeals filed within a period of four years  

         following the effective date of the reassessment. 

 

    h.  The Contractor shall provide clerical staff to insure  

          that all requirements for completion of the general  

          reassessment are met. 

 

    i.  Work Format for Contractor: 

 

 (1)    The Contractor shall visit each parcel of land 

                     and make a complete physical inspection. 

 

 (2)    On each improved property, the main building   

                     will be measured and sketched on the property  

                     field card, if the square footage of the building  

                     is a factor in the valuation of the same. 

 

           (3)    The Contractor will conduct an interview with 

                     the property owner of each parcel if possible.    

                     If no one is there, a doorknob hanger will be   

                     left informing the individual of the  

                     reassessment and requesting the appropriate  

                     information. In the event information on the  

                     property is refused, a notation will be made on  

                     the field card and the property will be  

                     appraised on the best information available. 



 (4)    The Contractor will keep a record on the  

                     property card of each visit, the date, time,  

                     name of appraiser and persons interviewed.        

                     Digital photographs of all parcel               

                     improvements will be taken and provided in  

         file form to the Commissioner of the Revenue.  

 

 (5)    The Contractor shall list and appraise by  

                     square footage the living space of all mobile  

                     homes along with other improvements. 

 

 (6)    The Contractor shall be responsible for  

         appraising all new construction during the  

         term of the contract. New Construction will be  

         noted on the field card and closely coordinated  

         with the Commissioner of the Revenue. 

 

(7)    The Contractor shall make available to the  

         County any reassessment data in digital form  

         that the Contractor may have. 

 

(8)    The Contractor shall provide adequate and  

         competent clerical staff to make the appraisal. 

 

(9)    The Contractor shall mail the reassessment  

         notices. 

 

(10)  The Contractor shall furnish all data   

         processing including computer data entry; and  

         upon completion, two copies of the  

         reassessment book in both numerical and  

         alphabetical listing. (four books total). Printed  

         property cards will not be needed. 

 

(11)  The Contractor shall provide a telephone in  

         the reassessment office. Such telephone must  

         have an answering machine or voicemail to  

         record message. 

 



                                                   j.  The Contractor shall make speakers available for 

                                                       meeting with civic groups or other interested parties  

                                                       as directed by the Board of Supervisors for the purpose 

                                                       of disseminating general information pertaining to the  

                                                       assessment process.  During the general reassessment,  

                                                       the Contractor will endeavor to promote good public 

                                                       relations with all taxpayers and the general public. 

 

          2.  The County shall provide and pay for: 

 

    a.  The County shall furnish the Contractor access to the  

                                                     current assessment cards which will show the name and  

                                                     address of the current owner, a description of the  

                                                     property as shown on the land book, including the  

                                                     acreage and tax map number. 

 

                                                b.  The County shall provide office space, furniture, and   

                                                     office equipment. 

 

    c.  The County shall furnish the necessary office supplies  

                                                     including postage and stationary for mailing notices and  

                                                     any advertising costs for hearings. 

 

    d.  The County shall pay for the reassessment notices. 

 

    e.  The County shall pay the postage for mailing the  

                                                     reassessment notices. 

 

    f.  The County will furnish a copy of the county tax maps,  

    showing corrections as of December 31, 2010 located in      

    the Office of the Commissioner of the Revenue. 

 

 

                       III.   General Terms and Conditions 

 

   A.  The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any 

                                          and all bids and does not commit itself to accepting the  

                                          lowest bid. 

 

   B.  ANTI-COLLUSION CERTIFICATION:  By my signature 

                                          on the attached pricing schedule, I certify that this bid/offer 

                                          is made without prior understanding, agreement or services and  

                              is in all respects fair and without conclusion of fraud.  

 

 

 

 

 

                              



                              I understand collusive bidding is a violation of the Virginia 

                              Governmental Frauds Act and Federal Law, and can result in 

                              fines, prison sentences, and civil damage awards. I agree to 

                              abide by all conditions of this proposal and certify that I am  

                              authorized to sign this bid/proposal for the bidder/offerer. 

 

                       C.   LAWS OF THE COMMONWEALTH:  Any purchase  

                              order/contract resulting from this solicitation shall be governed  

                              in all respects whether as to validity, construction, capacity,  

                              performance or otherwise by the laws of the Commonwealth of  

                             Virginia.  Contractors providing goods or services to the  

                             County of Fluvanna herewith assure the County that they are  

                             conforming to the provisions of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,  

                             as amended, as well as the Virginia Fair Employment Act of    

                             1975, as amended, where applicable and Section 11-51 of the  

                             amended, where applicable and Section 11-51 of the Virginia  

                             Public Procurement Act which provides: 

 

       In every contract of over $10,000, the provisions in 1 and 2  

                             below apply: 

 

       1.   During the performance of this contract, the contractor  

                                   agrees as follows: 

 

   a.  The Contractor will not discriminate against any  

                 employee or applicant for employment because of race,  

                 religion, color, sex or national origin is a bona fide  

                 occupational qualification reasonably necessary to the  

                 normal operation of the Contractor. The Contractor  

                 agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to  

                 employees and applicants for employment, notices  

                 setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination   

                 clause. 

 

            b.  The Contractor, in all solicitations or advertisements for  

                                       employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, will  

                                       state that such contractor is an equal opportunity  

                                       employer. 

 

                                  c.  Notices, advertisements, and solicitations or  

                                       advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of  

                                       the contractor, will state that such contractor is an equal  

                                       opportunity employer. 

      

 

 2.     The Contractor will include the provisions of the foregoing  

                                 paragraphs a,b, and c in every subcontract or purchase order  

                                 of over $10,000, so that the provisions will be binding upon  

                                 each subcontractor or vendor. 



 

                                d.  MODIFICATIONS, ADDITIONS OR CHANGES:  The  

                                     General Terms and Conditions of this solicitation will be  

                                     incorporated into any resulting contract. Modifications,  

                                     additions, or changes to these terms and conditions may be  

                                     cause for rejection. Unless specifically provided for in the  

                                     solicitation, bidders who attach or submit bids or proposals  

                                     on their own company forms may be considered non- 

                                     responsive. 

 

         e.  KICKBACKS:  I certify and warrant that, by my signature  

                                    on the attached pricing schedule, neither I nor the  

                                    bidder/offerer for whom I am authorized to act has offered  

                                    or received any kickback from any other bidder, offerer,   

                                    supplier, manufacturer, or subcontractor in connection with  

                                    my bid/offer on this solicitation. A kickback is defined as  

                                    an inducement for the award of a contract, subcontracts or  

                                    order, in the form of any payment, loan, subscription,  

                                    advance, deposit of money, services or anything, present or  

                                    promised, unless consideration of substantially equal or  

                                    greater value is exchanged. Further, no person shall  

                                    demand or receive any payment, loan, subscription,  

                                    advance, deposit of money, services or anything of value in                       

                                    return for an agreement not to compete on a public  

                                    contract. 

 

         f.  GIFT BY BIDDER, OFFERER, CONTRACTOR OR  

                                    SUBCONTRACTOR:   No bidder, offerer, contractor or  

                                    subcontractor shall confer on any public employee having  

                                    official responsibility for a procurement transaction any  

                                    payment, loan, subscription, advance, deposit of money,  

                                    services or anything of more than nominal value, present or  

                                    promised, unless consideration of substantially equal or  

                                    greater value is exchanged. 

 

       g.  HOLD HARMLESS:  Contractor agrees to indemnify,  

                                  defend and hold harmless the County of Fluvanna, its  

                                  officers, agents, and employee from any claims, damages,  

                                  and actions of any nature, whether at law or in equity,  

                                  arising from or caused by the use of any materials, goods, or  

                                  equipment of any kind or nature, furnished by the  

                                  contractor/any services of any kind or nature provided by  

                                 the contractor, provided that such liability is not attributable      

                                 to the sole negligence on the part of using agency or to  

                                 failure of the using agency to use the materials, goods, or  

                                 equipment in the manner outlined by the contractor and  

                                 descriptive literature or specifications submitted with the  

                                 contractor’s bid. 

 



                           h.    INTEGRATION AND MODIFICATION:  This contract  

                                  constitutes the entire agreement between the contractor and  

          the agency. No alteration, amendment or modification in the  

          provisions of this agreement shall be effective unless it is  

          reduced to writing, signed by the parties attached hereto. 

 

   i.   LAWS AND REGULATIONS:  By my signature on the  

        attached pricing schedule, I certify compliance with Federal,  

        State and local laws and regulations applicable to the  

        performance of the services described herein. 

 

   j.  ASSIGNMENT:  No contract may be signed, sublet or  

        transferred without the written consent of the procuring  

        agency. 

 

   k.  DEFAULT:  In the case of default by the contractor or failure  

        to deliver the services by the time specified as in accordance  

        with the schedules herein, the agency after due written notice  

        may procure such services from other sources and hold the  

        contractor responsible for any and all excess cost occasioned  

        thereby. 

 

 

                       IV. Special Instructions 

 

   A. Sealed proposals will be received in the Office of the County  

                                        Administrator, County of Fluvanna, 132 Main Street, PO Box  

                                        540, Palmyra, Virginia 22963, no later than 10:00 a.m., August  

                                        19, 2011 at which time they will be publicly opened. 

 

   B. Proposals shall include, but not limited to the following, which  

                                         will be the basis for the award. 

 

         1.  Price. 

      

2.  Proposed project manager, including  

                                                                 qualifications. 

      

3.  Experience and references in Virginia counties. 

      

4.  Summary outline of how the project will be   

undertaken- include time schedule broken down        

by phases. 

                              

                                                            5.  Statement as to all “exceptions to proposals.” 

 

     6.  Other data, brochures, samples, which might  

                                                                  prove worthy in evaluating the proposal. 

 



                       

V.  Pricing Schedule 

 

      The sealed proposal will include the following: 

 

   A.  Price per parcel $____________ 

 

   B.  Lump sum price for completed project 

                                         $_________________________________(in words) 

 

     

         VI. Terms of Payment 

 

      The payment will be made quarterly unless agreed upon otherwise when  

                            contract is signed. Ten percent of the gross contract will be withheld  

                            payable at the completion of the Board of Equalization hearings and  

                            production of the four reassessment books. 

 

 

                            In compliance with this Request for Proposals and to all the conditions  

                            imposed herein, the undersigned agrees to furnish the goods/services in  

                            accordance with the attached proposal or as mutually agreed upon by  

                            subsequent negotiation. 

 

 

       Date: ____________________ 

        

       By: ____________________ 

                                                            (signature) 

 

      Title: ____________________ 

 

      Name and Address of Firm: 

 

      ___________________________ 

 

      ___________________________ 

  

      ___________________________ 

 

      Telephone no: _______________ 

 

 

   

 



 

Memo 
To: Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 

From: Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

Date: July 6, 2011 

Re: July 6
th

 Board of Supervisors Work Session 

Attached you will find a set of documents from past Board retreats in 

preparation for the discussion with Steve Williams at the upcoming Board work 

session.  There is no formal presentation planned, and these documents are 

intended to remind the Board of some previous information and decisions to 

help better inform the conversation.   

 

The first document is an overview of the Board’s work session from February 

17
th

 2010 facilitated by Darren Coffey.   The second document is from the 

Board’s work session on July 22
nd

 2009. The final document shows previously 

established goals set by the Board of Supervisors during their February 2008 

work session. These documents are intended to provide you with a broader 

context for the upcoming discussion.   

 

Feel free to contact me if you have any other questions regarding this work 

session.   

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 

John Y. Gooch, Chairman 
Palmyra District 

 

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice Chair 
Columbia  District 

 

Donald W. Weaver 
Cunningham District 

 

Mozell H. Booker 
Fork Union  District 

 

Joseph C. Chesser 

Rivanna District 

 
Chris Fairchild 

Rivanna  District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 STAFF 

 
Jay Scudder 

County Administrator 

jscudder@co.fluvanna.va.us 
 

 

Mary L. Weaver 
Clerk to the Board 

mweaver@co.fluvanna.va.us 

 
  

 

 

 

P.O. Box 540 

Palmyra, VA 22963 
 

 (434) 591-1910 

 FAX (434) 591-1911 

www.co.fluvanna.va.us 
“Responsive & Responsible Government” 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  

mailto:mweaver@co.fluvanna.va.us


 
 
 
 
 
 

Fluvanna County 
 

Board of Supervisors 
 
 

Vision & Goal Setting  
 

Work Session 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 17, 2010 
 

2



VISION 
 

Fluvanna County is the most livable and sustainable community 
in the United States. 

 
 
 
What does this mean to each of you?  
 
 

 Sustainable = density; Manhattan; walkable (Green Metropolis : What the City Can 
Teach the Country about True Sustainability by David Owen); generally not synonymous 
with rural communities 

 
 Livable = quality of life; sustainable = leaving within your means; A Legacy of Rural 

Virginia by Don Payne (historical description of Fluvanna County) 
 

 Livable = variety of lot sizes; character; rural; a spectrum of mixed uses and incomes; 
residents can choose to live in higher density or not 

 
 Sustainable = basic needs are provided; Fluvanna is livable, but not sustainable;  “is” is 

not accurate in that context – can we really afford our current spending levels?; need for 
assistance to families is increasing (e.g., food stamps); livable = rural character; the Lake 
Monticello subdivision has a rural feel too 

 
 Livable = affordability and maintenance; reservations about sustainability in terms of 

taxes, increased need for assistance to families; green technology & practices are good; 
alternative energy use 

 
 Sustainable = everlasting; clean environment; financial stability; mixture of housing; 

public safety; economic development 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3



VISION 
 

Fluvanna County is the most livable and sustainable community 
in the United States. 

 
 
What constitutes a livable community? 
 
 

 Affordable (e.g., housing, taxes, transportation) 
 

 Environmentally sound 
 

 Open space 
 

 Safe and secure (i.e., EMS, Fire, Police) 
 

 Efficient transportation infrastructure; don’t urbanize our roads; minimize congestion; 
balance traffic flow and speed 

 
 Improve transportation methods; alternative transportation 

 
 Maintain a strong education system 

 
 Develop employment centers; job creation 

 
 Strong faith community 

 
 Economic empowerment 

 
 Recreational amenities 

 
 Being able to live, work, and play in place 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4



VISION 
 

Fluvanna County is the most livable and sustainable community 
in the United States. 

 
 
What does it mean to be sustainable? 
 
 

 This concept does apply to rural areas (not just urban) 
 

 Should we be more like Albemarle or Buckingham? 
 

 Need to balance residential, commercial, office, and industrial uses; Loudon County’s 
town communities 

 
 Need mixed use, mixed income development 

 
 Must be affordable; livable and sustainable may not be compatible concepts 

 
 Lake demographic may be residential but generates 43% of real estate tax revenues 

(based on population percentage), but only approximately 30% of public school students 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

5



VISION 
 

Fluvanna County is the most livable and sustainable community 
in the United States. 

 
 
Is this the Board’s vision for the County?  

 
  

 According to three Board members – yes 
 

 
To preserve and enhance Fluvanna’s unique identity and rural character. 

 
 

 This is a more realistic and appropriate vision according to three Board members 
 

 This statement is easier to define 
 
 

 The vision should say who we are and what we want to be. 
 

 The vision should identify what makes us unique. 
 

 The current vision may give a false connotation. 
 

 The vision should accurately address the county’s character and uniqueness. 
 

 Preserving and enhancing Fluvanna’s unique identity and rural character while growing as a 
livable/sustainable community is a difficult challenge. 

 
 
 
 

6



BOARD PRIORITIES / GOALS 
 
 
The Board has stated that its CIP priorities, on the whole, are: 
 

• Emergency Communications System 
• Financial Software 
• Vehicles for Fire/Sheriff 
• School renovations 
• Provision of Water 

 
 
How does this translate into broader priorities? 
 
 
One possibility is: 
 

o Public Safety 
o Fiscal Responsibility/Sustainability 
o Economic Development 

 
 
What do each of you think the Board’s major priority should be? 
 
 

 Fiscal responsibility (including clearly defining what this means) 
 

 Economic development 
 

 Budget (budget, budget) 
 

 Economic development within the framework of the Comprehensive Plan and its goals 
and implementation strategies 

 
 Education (investments in human capital as well as capital infrastructure) 

 
 
Do these priorities achieve the vision? 
 

 Yes 
 
 
 

7



BOARD PRIORITIES / GOALS 
 
A major County emphasis in the past few years (at a minimum) has been 
implementation. 
 
How should each of your priorities be addressed, at least initially? 
 
Education  
 

 Costs must be sustainable; infrastructure, operations and maintenance 
 

 High quality must be maintained through efficiency and identifying what is necessary vs. 
desired (high ranking within the state needs to be maintained - Fluvanna was one of fifteen 
school divisions to earn the Board of Education Excellence Award, an honor awarded as part 
of the Virginia Index of Performance (VIP) program.  Fluvanna County High School was one 
of 281 schools to earn the Board of Education Competence to Excellence Award for having 
met all state and federal benchmarks for at least two consecutive years and for making 
progress toward the goals of the governor and the board. VIP was approved by the Board of 
Education in July 2007, as an incentive program to reward and recognize fully accredited 
schools and school divisions making significant progress toward academic excellence.  ) 
 

 The Board of Supervisors has limited control (funding, not policy decisions) which is a 
challenge 
 

 Both Boards must be partners in order to sustain a long term investment in the provision 
of high quality education in a safe, healthy, and good environment 

 
Economic Development 
 

 Implement the Comprehensive Plan 
 

 Infrastructure – water, sewer, roads, etc. 
 

 Financial Affordability 
 

 Tools – zoning, proffers, staff, target/defined businesses and recruitment strategies 
 

Budget 
 

 First determine total revenues 
 

 Fairly impact County services along with impacts to taxpayers (balance impacts) 
 

 Be clear about proposed impacts to staff (e.g., layoffs vs. salary reductions, and so on) 
 

8



BOARD PRIORITIES / GOALS 
 

Does the Comp Plan still provide an effective mechanism to implement the goals 
and strategies that achieve the Board’s priorities? (Think about the Board’s 2009 
Goals Work Session – are those priorities and ideas still valid?) 
 

 Yes 
 

 Implementation is critical! 
 

 We need to identify where we want to be (with the strategies completed) in five years 
 

o Staff recommends a target of 85-90% of all strategies completed or in progress by 
March 2014 (the plan’s 5-year review should at least be underway by that time) 

 
 Staff should also update the Board quarterly with some key development/planning 

indicators (in addition to the annual Development Activity Report and monthly Planning 
Activity Report) 

 
***** 

 
WRAP-UP 

 
Are we comfortable with:  
 

  the Vision       
  the Priorities/Goals   
  the method of implementation  

 
 

 Vision - In general, yes, but with more emphasis on the county’s unique qualities and 
rural character (high quality of life that is financially and environmentally sustainable) 
 

 Priorities – Yes 
 

 Implementation method – Yes 
 
 
 
Thank you for taking the time to review and discuss these important concepts!   
 
Hopefully it will help to guide you in your upcoming budget discussions. 

9



July 22, 2009   

            1 

Comprehensive Plan Goals Board  
Priority Comments 

Natural Environment   
Goal 1: To develop land-use policies and regulations that will 

preserve and enhance the county’s natural environment. 1  

Goal 2:  To protect environmental resources.   
Goal 3:  To manage and protect surface water and groundwater 

resources.    
Goal 4: To effectively use floodplains to protect human life and 

property, as well as water quality.   
Goal 5:  To promote energy efficiency throughout the county to 

improve air quality and reduce the county’s dependence 
on fossil fuels. 

2  

Land Use   
Goal 1: To effectively implement the Comprehensive Plan land-

use strategies and the Future Land Use Map. 1  
Goal 2: To enable well-planned, coordinated, and sustainable 

development to occur throughout the county. 2  

Goal 3: To promote infill development in existing communities.   
Goal 4: To develop a transfer of development rights (TDR) or 

purchase of development rights (PDR) program.   

Goal 5: To actively preserve and promote open space.   

10



July 22, 2009   

            2 

 

Community Design   
Goal 1:  To preserve and enhance Fluvanna's unique identity and 

rural character. 2  
Goal 2:  To develop higher-density, walkable, mixed-use 

communities in the identified growth areas of the county. 1  
Goal 3:  To promote village-scaled development in the Palmyra 

and Fork Union communities.   
Goal 4:  To preserve and enhance historic areas and properties of 

the county.   

Infrastructure   
Goal 1:  To protect the county’s natural and historic resources and 

critical wildlife habitats by the effective utilization of 
green infrastructure in all development projects. 

  

Goal 2:  To develop a comprehensive public water system to serve 
the county’s community planning areas.  1  

Goal 3:  To provide central sewer to the community planning 
areas.   

Goal 4:  To regulate private utilities, whether centralized or 
decentralized.   

Goal 5:  To maintain a comprehensive, long-range solid waste 
management program.   

Goal 6:  To facilitate the deployment of a comprehensive 
communications network that ensures the reliability of 
public safety, wireless, and broadband services. 

2  

Goal 7:  To evaluate private developments and public investments, 
such as capital improvement projects, within a fiscal 
framework as approved by the Board of Supervisors. 

3  

11



July 22, 2009   

            3 

 

Transportation   

Goal 1: To make needed improvements to primary roads.    

Goal 2: To improve secondary roads with the assistance of VDOT. 2  
Goal 3: To improve pedestrian and bicycle access to roads and 
provide off-road trails and walkways.   
Goal 4: To improve the availability and quality of public 
transportation in the county. 3  

Goal 5: To ensure the delivery of railroad services in the county.    

Goal 6: To support road construction and maintenance.  1  
Goal 7: To control litter.    

Economic Development   
Goal 1: To strengthen and clarify the county’s commitment to 

economic development. 2  
Goal 2: To implement the county’s community planning areas, as 

shown on the Future Land Use Map.   

Goal 3: To protect rural areas through economic development.   
Goal 4: To diversify and strengthen the county’s tax base. 1  
Goal 5: To develop a stronger regional presence.   

12



July 22, 2009   

            4 

 

Historic Preservation   
Goal 1:  To protect and conserve the county’s historic and cultural 

resources.  1  
Goal 2:  To identify and classify significant historic resources. 3  
Goal 3:  To identify areas with tourism potential based on historic, 

cultural, recreational and other relevant resources.  2  

Parks and Recreation   
Goal 1:  To upgrade or maintain existing facilities to allow for 

effective program delivery and community use.   
Goal 2:  To continue the phased development of Pleasant Grove as a 

regional park that serves the identified recreational needs of 1  
Goal 3:  To plan and construct additional recreational facilities that 

will diversify and strengthen the existing parks and 
programs. 

3  

Goal 4:  To increase recreational programming opportunities for all 
age groups and special populations.   

Goal 5:  To foster public-private partnerships with recreation-based 
organizations or other interested parties, for facility 
construction and program implementation. 

2  

13



July 22, 2009   

            5 

 

Housing   
Goal 1:  To provide for most of the county’s future housing needs 

within the community planning areas. 1  
Goal 2:  To provide a variety of well-planned housing choices.   
Goal 3:  To increase the affordability of both new and existing 

housing stock for low- and moderate-income individuals 2  
Goal 4:  To improve Fluvanna County’s housing database and 

available information to facilitate the planning process.    

Human Services   
Goal 1:  To provide a single point of entry for human services 

information/referral.  2  
Goal 2:  To provide adequate funding and staffing to ensure that 

human service needs of citizens are met. 1  
Goal 3:  To provide adequate services for adolescent and teen 

populations.    
Goal 4:  To provide adequate services for elderly, disabled, and 

mentally ill or impaired citizens.   

Goal 5:  To provide high-quality and affordable child-care services.    

Goal 6:  To prevent drug and substance abuse.     
Goal 7:  To provide appropriate and adequate medical, health, and 

safety service facilities that are available to all populations.    

Goal 8:  To provide for the safety and well-being of our citizens.   

14



July 22, 2009   

            6 

Education   
Goal 1:  To provide instructional programs supporting the Standards 

of Learning (SOLs).   
Goal 2:  To continue career and technical education programs that 

emphasize the advantages of completing school with 
marketable skills, and that promote knowledge of careers 
along with all types of employment opportunities. 

2  

Goal 3:  To provide adult education and family literacy programs.    
Goal 4:  To plan for capital improvements and additions in 

cooperation with the Board of Supervisors and appropriate 
County staff through the annual CIP process.  

1  

Public Safety   
Goal 1:  To improve public safety infrastructure and operability in 

order to provide excellent service and protection to County 
residents. 

1  

Goal 2:  To promote the effectiveness of community-based 
programs.   

Goal 3:  To strengthen the human capital component of emergency 
services.   

Goal 4:  To integrate the provision of emergency services with other 
county and regional policies. 2  

 

15



July 22, 2009   

            7 

 

Additional Goals of the  
Board of Supervisors 

Board  
Priority Comments 

Communication   

Goal 1:  Develop a communications strategy.   

Fiscal Planning   
Goal 1:  Develop a short-term (12 month) fiscal strategy to 

address the fiscal crisis within the context of long-range 
fiscal planning through 2029. 

  

Goal 2:  Review the current CIP development process with the 
Planning Commission.   

 

16



Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
February 23, 2008 

Recap 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VISION STATEMENT 
 
Fluvanna County is the most livable and sustainable 
community in the United States. 

VALUES 
 
Integrity Honesty 
Accountability Respect 

 
Additional Values 
Sustainable Innovative 
Ethical Fair 
Consistent Legal 

 

CRITICAL GOAL CATEGORIES  
 
1. Planning & Growth Management 
2. Infrastructure 
3. Funding/Fiscal Planning 
4. Economic Tax Base 
5. Communication 
6. Recreation 
7. Education 
8. Human Services 
9. Public Safety 
10. Staffing/HR 
 

17



Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
February 23, 2008 
Interview Results 

 
2007 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 Eliminated car decals 
 Approved funding for high school 
 Approved expansion of senior citizen tax relief 
 First geothermal public building 
 New library 
 Three soccer fields 
 Palmyra’s sewer system 
 Dedicated new firehouse 
 Dedicated new bridge 
 Unanimous approval on budget and tax rate 
 New budget process 
 Restarted county carnival 
 Hired first IT Director 
 Clean financial report 
 No management letter 

 
WHAT I’M MOST PROUD OF IN MY ROLE AS SUPERVISOR 

 Having gotten the High School where it is 
 Being elected 
 Good vision-catalyst and visionary on Pleasant Grove 
 My ability to bring cohesion to the group 
 Improving financial integrity of the county 
 Bringing an innovative approach to county government 
 Right wing conservative with finances and budgeting  
 Financial expertise that I bring to the county 
 Improved roadways, especially in my district 
 Tried to change role of chair to amore hands on role in setting BOS agenda and facilitating 

cooperation between Board and Staff 
 Get high school approved 
 True to taxpayers spending $ the best way we can 

 
VISION 

 The BOS makes informed rational decisions that move the county forward. 
 Living within means. Going to have to look at land use, comprehensive plan and come to 

consensus. 
 After clear, committee goals, to what extent we accomplish these goals, and how the 

public views how we work together. Positive communication between board members. 
 BOS to be able to work together to develop comprehensive plan and zoning to channel 

growth into appropriate growth areas (residential) and develop commercial tax base so 
there’s not so much strain on the resident. 

 Fluvanna County’s government is an effective voice for the county’s people carrying out 
its mandate to provide for health, education and welfare of citizens. Citizens are an 
integral part of establishing Fluvanna goals for its future and are included in planning 
process. BOS sets county’s policies including clear and understandable priorities to be 

18



Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
February 23, 2008 
Interview Results 

 
executed by a professional talented, committee public staff. Our goal is to make Fluvanna 
the most livable jurisdiction in Virginia. 

 Infrastructure and growth areas must change drastically. 
 
EXTERNAL FACTORS 

 Economy 
 Land use 
 Taxes 
 The high school 
 Revenue 
 Housing market 
 Zion Crossroads’ growth 
 Affordable housing  
 Regional planning 
 Relationship between state and local governments—increased mandates with decreased $ 
 Water agreement 
 Economic development 
 As Albemarle County has difficulty sustaining its growth, more people will move to 

Fluvanna and commute to Albemarle. 
 
INTERNAL FACTORS 

 Managing funds 
 Communication 

o Internal  
o External 

 Self-service user-friendly website that is regularly updated 
 Need to be more: 

o Interactive 
o Responsive 
o Responsible  

 Size of administrative team 
o Do we have resources to carry out what needs to be done 

 Move from rural domination to growing suburban population 
 Leadership with vision 
 Staff expertise 

o Recruiting 
o Training 
o Adequate pay 
o Recognition 

 Customer Service 
 Rivanna River and water table 
 Inadequately modernizing government 
 VDOT to improve roads 
 Makeup of BOS 
 Must take care of needs of people 

o Healthcare, police, fire 

19



Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
February 23, 2008 
Interview Results 

 
 
BOARD/STAFF ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 BOS defines policies and prioritizes goals and effectively communicates with senior staff 
(who in turn communicates with the rest of staff) and communicates with public. 

 BOS makes policy decisions and staff carries them out. BOS holds staff accountable but 
doesn’t with their ability to do their job.  

 BOS provides accountability, clear standards and direction to departments, and 
periodically stopping to evaluate where we are. Celebrate accomplishments. 

 Needs improvement, but I’m very pleased with the way the BOS is working together these 
last two months. 

 Staff works for BOS. Our interface with staff is through packets. Our primary interface is 
through county administrator who should talk with chairman and chairman talks with 
BOS. We don’t like to be surprised. We should not be running in there and asking 
questions. 

 BOS tries to carry out will of the people. BOS creates direction. Staff carries out direction 
of BOS. Staff needs to bring BOS concerns and needs BOS doesn’t see. 

 
WHAT IS NEEDED TO EFFECTIVELY IMPLEMENT THE ACTION PLAN? 

 BOS to approve action plan 
 Follow-up in public setting 
 Scheduled briefings in Board Packet 
 BOS and staff must embrace action and have the dedication to see it through 
 True commitment from BOS 
 Before we leave be able to say, “This  is how we’re going to keep this action plan 
 Consensus 
 Implementation strategy with timeline 
 Not too long 
 Mechanism for accountability 
 Commitment to priorities/goals 
 Should be adopted by BOS as public policy and then communicated to public 

 
WHAT DO YOU WANT TO GET FROM THIS RETREAT?  

 Come together on vision, responsibilities and goals.  
 A sense of direction for what the group wants to do on major issues in the county.  
 A clear set of priorities and implementation strategy for BOX that we can clearly 

communicate to staff. (1/3) 
 Clear goals for BOS. (1/3) 
 See how we work together as a group.  
 2008 goals on which we all agree.  (1/3) 
 A good sense where we as a group feel what direction the county should take on growth, 

zoning, Comp. Plan, etc.  (1/3) 
 Working relationship between BOX and senior staff (then rest of staff) by a clear set of 

priorities and goals within a timeframe.  (1/2) 
(We will use the 3 follow-up sessions to finish creating prioritized SMART goals.) 

20



Critical Goals of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors

CGC CGC 
Owner Goal Priority  

A,B,C
Goal 

Owner Action Steps Rspnsblty Due Date Actual  Date

Communication Marvin/
Mozell

Growth Managed and 
Compatible Zoning BOS communicates priorities to public 3/14/2008

Communication Marvin/
Mozell

Growth Managed and 
Compatible Zoning BOS adopts priorities 3/19/2008

Communication Marvin/
Mozell

Growth Managed and 
Compatible Zoning Develop communication strategy 4/1/2008

Communication Marvin/
Mozell

Growth Managed and 
Compatible Zoning Schedule follow-up meetings to review priorities 5/8/2008

Communication Marvin/
Mozell

Growth Managed and 
Compatible Zoning Schedule follow-up meetings to review priorities 7/8/2008

Communication Marvin/
Mozell

Growth Managed and 
Compatible Zoning Schedule follow-up meetings to review priorities 9/8/2008

Communication Marvin/
Mozell

Pass Zoning Ordinance by 
11/30/09

Marvin Hold more public meetings for better communications 
12/1/2008

Communication Marvin/
Mozell

Review Zoning Ordinance by 
6/30/09

Marvin Regularly monitor process Marvin/ 
Mozell 12/31/2008

Communication Marvin/
Mozell

Review Zoning Ordinance by 
6/30/09

Marvin Decide if we want to hire communications firm for 
community outreach and materials design 1/31/2009

Communication Mozell Board communicates 
priorities to public

Cabell Contact media channels 2 weeks prior to meeting

Communication Mozell Board communicates 
priorities to public

Cabell Have Jennifer come back to help meet to continuously 
reclarify priorities

Goals created at a Work Session held on February 23, 2008, and adopted at a regular meeting on March 19, 2008. Page 1 of 6
21



Critical Goals of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors

CGC CGC 
Owner Goal Priority  

A,B,C
Goal 

Owner Action Steps Rspnsblty Due Date Actual  Date

Education Charles/
John

Build new high school Hire a value engineering firm
4/15/2008

Education Charles/
John

Build new high school Report due
5/15/2008

Education Charles/
John

Build new high school BOS and School board review
6/15/2008

Education Charles/
John

Build new high school Decide if we want to recommend hiring a construction 
management firm 6/15/2008

Education Charles/
John

Build new high school Decide what type of financing
6/15/2008

Education Charles/
John

Build new high school Get bond rating
8/1/2008

Education Charles/
John

Make decision whether to 
hire CM firm by 6/15/08

John Provide architect with list of potential CM firms
9/1/2008

Education Charles/
John

Build new high school Borrow $ 
10/31/2008

Education Charles/
John

Make decision whether to 
hire CM firm by 6/15/08

John Determine where $ will come from for added cost to 
contract 10/31/2008

Education Charles/
John

Make decision whether to 
hire CM firm by 6/15/08

John Joint meeting with school board to reinforce that BOS 
does not want to run project

Goals created at a Work Session held on February 23, 2008, and adopted at a regular meeting on March 19, 2008. Page 2 of 6
22



Critical Goals of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors

CGC CGC 
Owner Goal Priority  

A,B,C
Goal 

Owner Action Steps Rspnsblty Due Date Actual  Date

Fiscal/Financial Planning Marvin/
Mozell

Get Bond rating by 8/1/08 Charles Allocate funds to obtain rating
Cabell 3/31/2008

Fiscal/Financial Planning Marvin/
Mozell

Get Bond rating by 8/1/08 Charles Implement accounting change to move deferred 
revenue to fund balance 5/1/2008

Fiscal/Financial Planning Marvin/
Mozell

Growth Managed and 
Compatible Zoning

Create strategy to improve rating
5/15/2008

Fiscal/Financial Planning Marvin/
Mozell

Growth Managed and 
Compatible Zoning

Get bond rating
8/1/2008

Fiscal/Financial Planning Marvin/
Mozell

Growth Managed and 
Compatible Zoning

Clarify funding for high school
10/31/2008

Goals created at a Work Session held on February 23, 2008, and adopted at a regular meeting on March 19, 2008. Page 3 of 6
23



Critical Goals of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors

CGC CGC 
Owner Goal Priority  

A,B,C
Goal 

Owner Action Steps Rspnsblty Due Date Actual  Date

Infrastructure--Water Gene Clarify funding of Pipeline Cabell Meet with Timmons & P-L Committee so BOS understands 
the facts Timmons 3/16/2008

Infrastructure--Water Gene James River Pipeline Pick a date for public hearing 4/1/2008
Infrastructure--Water Gene James River Pipeline Hold public education meeting 4/3/2008
Infrastructure--Water Gene Clarify funding of Pipeline Talk with known customers Cabell 4/30/2008
Infrastructure--Water Gene James River Pipeline Route 5/1/2008
Infrastructure--Water Gene James River Pipeline Partnership 5/1/2008
Infrastructure--Water Gene Clarify funding of Pipeline Cabell BOS meets to decide pipeline P-L 

Committee 5/1/2008

Infrastructure--Water Gene Clarify funding of Pipeline Meet with partners to quell disagreement P-L 
Committee 5/1/2008

Infrastructure--Water Gene Clarify funding of Pipeline Hold community meeting so public understands plan
BOS 5/30/2008

Infrastructure--Water Gene Clarify funding of Pipeline Meet with customers to discuss possible funding sources
Cabell 6/1/2008

Infrastructure--Water Gene Clarify funding of Pipeline Meet with partners P-L 
Committee 6/1/2008

Infrastructure--Water Gene Clarify funding of Pipeline Collect data based on cost and useasge P-L 
Committee 8/15/2008

Infrastructure--Water Gene James River Pipeline Authority 9/1/2008
Infrastructure--Water Gene Clarify funding of Pipeline Compute rates by using study data P-L 

Committee 9/1/2008

Infrastructure--Water Gene Clarify funding of Pipeline Work with EDC Chris F., Kim 
Booth, 

Charles
10/1/2008

Infrastructure--Water Gene Clarify funding of Pipeline Get bonds 10/1/2008
Infrastructure--Water Marvin/

Mozell
Growth Managed and 
Compatible Zoning Clarify funding for pipeline 10/1/2008

Infrastructure--Water Gene James River Pipeline Funding 11/1/2008
Infrastructure--Water Gene James River Pipeline BOS makes decision 12/1/2008

Goals created at a Work Session held on February 23, 2008, and adopted at a regular meeting on March 19, 2008. Page 4 of 6
24



Critical Goals of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors

CGC CGC 
Owner Goal Priority  

A,B,C
Goal 

Owner Action Steps Rspnsblty Due Date Actual  Date

Planning & Growth 
Management

Cabell Hold 5 regional meetings by 
9/30/08

Planning staff begins and preps early
Planning Staff 3/15/2008

Planning & Growth 
Management

Marvin/
Mozell

Pass Comp Plan by 1/7/09 Marvin Hold joint mtg with Planning Comm. To clarify process 
and develop specific timeline

Marvin/ 
Mozell 3/20/2008

Planning & Growth 
Management

Marvin/
Mozell

Pass Comp Plan by 1/7/09 Marvin Interview and select a consultant for the Comp Plan Marvin/ 
Mozell 4/1/2008

Planning & Growth 
Management

Marvin/
Mozell

Growth Managed and 
Compatible Zoning Staff preps implementation chapter 5/1/2008

Planning & Growth 
Management

Cabell Hold 5 regional meetings by 
9/30/08

Schedule dates early
Planning Staff 5/1/2008

Planning & Growth 
Management

Cabell Hold 5 regional meetings by 
9/30/08

Publicize meetings regionally with church
Planning Staff 5/1/2008

Planning & Growth 
Management

Marvin/
Mozell

Growth Managed and 
Compatible Zoning

Board reviews Comp Plan 
5/31/2008

Planning & Growth 
Management

Cabell Hold 5 regional meetings by 
9/30/08

BOS and Planning Commission commit to attend 
regional meetings BOS & PC 6/1/2008

Planning & Growth 
Management

Cabell Hold 5 regional meetings by 
9/30/08

BOS and Planning Commission ID community members 
to invite BOS & PC 6/1/2008

Planning & Growth 
Management

Marvin/
Mozell

Growth Managed and 
Compatible Zoning Review zoning ordinances 6/30/2008

Planning & Growth 
Management

Marvin/
Mozell

Growth Managed and 
Compatible Zoning Hold 2 joint planning meetings with Planning Commission 7/31/2008

Planning & Growth 
Management

Marvin/
Mozell

Growth Managed and 
Compatible Zoning

Hold 5 regional meetings 
9/30/2008

Planning & Growth 
Management

Marvin/
Mozell

Growth Managed and 
Compatible Zoning

Comp plan passed by BOS 
1/7/2009

Planning & Growth 
Management

Marvin/
Mozell

Review Zoning Ordinance by 
6/30/09

Marvin Impact 2009 General Assembly session
2/2/2009

Planning & Growth 
Management

Marvin/
Mozell

Review Zoning Ordinance by 
6/30/09

Marvin Contact elected officials in Richmond
2/2/2009

Planning & Growth 
Management

Marvin/
Mozell

Growth Managed and 
Compatible Zoning Pass zoning ordinances 11/30/2009

Goals created at a Work Session held on February 23, 2008, and adopted at a regular meeting on March 19, 2008. Page 5 of 6
25



Critical Goals of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors

CGC CGC 
Owner Goal Priority  

A,B,C
Goal 

Owner Action Steps Rspnsblty Due Date Actual  Date

Sustainability Don Sustainability Hire professional 10/1/2008
Sustainability Don Sustainability Research project 10/1/2008
Sustainability Don Sustainability Acquire funding 10/1/2008
Sustainability Don Sustainability BOS approval 10/1/2008

Goals created at a Work Session held on February 23, 2008, and adopted at a regular meeting on March 19, 2008. Page 6 of 6
26



 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO: Board of Supervisors  

FROM: Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst  

SUBJECT: Contingency Balance 

DATE: June 30, 2011 

 

The balances for the BOS and grant contingency lines for FY11 are as follows: 

 

Board of Supervisors contingency:   $100,000.00 

   Minus JRWA legal services 7.21.10 mtg.  -     4,479.87 

   Minus Animal Control vehicle 9.15.10 mtg. -   11,500.00 

   Minus Texting Module for E911 9.15.10 mtg. -     5,000.00 

   Minus Convenience Ctr 10.20.10 mtg.  -   13,191.00 

   Minus JRWA legal fees 10.20.10 mtg.  -     2,313.24 

   Minus JRWA legal fees 1.19.11   -        326.50 

   Minus iPads for BOS 3.2.11 mtg.   -    10,200.00 

   Minus 5 year forecast 3.16.11 mtg.   -    15,000.00 

   Minus TJPED Study 6.1.11 mtg.   -    10,000.00 

   Minus magazine spotlight 6.1.11 mtg.  -         250.00 

   Minus County Attorney fees 6.15.11  -    27,739.39 

       $ 0 

 

Grant contingency:      $ 0 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  

“Responsive & Responsible Government” 

P.O. Box 540, Palmyra, VA 22963  · (434) 591-1910  ·  FAX (434) 591-1911  · www.co.fluvanna.va.us 



 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO: Board of Supervisors  

FROM: Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst  

SUBJECT: Contingency Balance 

DATE: July 6, 2011 

 

The balances for the BOS and grant contingency lines for FY12 are as follows: 

 

Board of Supervisors contingency:   $100,000.00 

 

Grant contingency:      $ 0 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  

“Responsive & Responsible Government” 

P.O. Box 540, Palmyra, VA 22963  · (434) 591-1910  ·  FAX (434) 591-1911  · www.co.fluvanna.va.us 


	Motion to Adopt Minutes of June 15, 2011
	Motion to Extend the Contract for the County Attorney
	County Pay and Classification Plan
	Accounts Payable	
	Ordinance Authorizing Monetary Bonus
	Redistricting	
	Reassessment of Real Property	
	BOS Retreat Memo
	June Contingency Memo
	FY12 Contingency Memo



